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Moving Oklahoma in a Grand Direction

Grand River Dam Authority and its customers 
gained momentum as we continued to work 
together moving Oklahoma in a grand direction.  

This tradition—over 65 years old—of utilizing Oklahoma resources to meet 

Oklahoma needs resounded in 2006. Following three years of significant changes 

where GRDA embraced the basic fundamentals and principles of public power, 

and renewed commitments to provide necessary resources for its public power 

partners in the future, the role GRDA serves became clearer—and more valued.  

GRDA’s overriding goals remain the same: to be Oklahoma’s low-cost, 

reliable electric supplier, to be a good steward of the resources under 

its control, and to be a valuable asset for the state of Oklahoma.
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April 30, 2007

To GRDA customers, bondholders, and the citizens of Oklahoma:

On behalf of the Grand River Dam Authority (GRDA), we respectfully submit this 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2006. The GRDA 
Finance and Media Services Departments prepared this comprehensive report in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe 
the information presented is accurate in all material aspects and that all disclosures have 
been included, which are necessary to enable the reader to gain an adequate understanding of 
the Authority’s financial position and results of operations. Responsibility for the accuracy, 
completeness, and fairness of the financial statement presentation and disclosures rests with 
the management of the Authority.

The Grand River Dam Authority is a nonappropriated agency of the state of Oklahoma, 
utilizing revenues earned as a public power agency to finance our activities as a conservation 
and reclamation district.  Our financial statements are included by the state as a discretely 
presented component unit.

GRDA was pleased to receive the Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 2005 from 
the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada. The goal 
of this report is to give readers a better understanding of GRDA. While embracing historic 
strengths, changes were initiated during the last three years to ensure GRDA will continue 
to provide quality products and services to utility and lake customers. The following pages 
illustrate how actions taken during 2006 continue to move Oklahoma in a grand direction.

Sincerely,

Respectfully submitted,

Carolyn Vowell Dougherty
Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer

ADMINISTRATION . PO Box 409 . Vinita OK 74301-0409 . 918-256-5545 . Fax 918-256-5289
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Moving Oklahoma in a Grand Direction
GRDA has been a grand resource for the state of Oklahoma, 
helping to shape the landscape and economy of Northeast 
Oklahoma in particular. No matter how significant the history 
and traditions, or inspirational the stories about the people who 
built GRDA into a great organization, the Authority’s value 
in the future must stand on its own merits. The actions of the 
past year have been taken to ensure GRDA will continue to be 
the best power supplier for our customers for decades to come. 
Comprehensive plans to manage lake resources are being de-
veloped concurrently to make sure GRDA will be a responsible 
steward of the tremendous assets under its control. 

Balancing Natural Resources

The generation from GRDA’s three hydro facilities—Pensacola 
Dam, Robert S. Kerr Dam, and the Salina Pumped Storage 
Project—is important to the Authority’s low-cost, reliable power 
and energy mix. GRDA must always balance natural resource 
management with electric generation. The Authority has a respon-
sibility that can be traced to Oklahoma legislation which created 
the Authority in 1935 to be a “conservation and reclamation 
district for the waters of the Grand River.” In addition, the hy-
droelectric projects are licensed by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC), and as a result, the federal agency has over-
sight over GRDA’s hydro projects, and its policies and decisions 
affect much of what GRDA does. As an economic engine for 
Oklahoma, the lake area is a wonderful place to live, work, or 

play; therefore, good lake management is important for the future 
of the area. GRDA has an overriding goal to be a good steward of 
the natural resources of the Grand River. 

Listening to the Public

As a public agency, public input is not only requested, it 
is highly solicited and valued. GRDA exists to serve 
the public stakeholders. That public input pro-
cess was very apparent during 2006 as many 
lake-area volunteers provided input on a 
comprehensive shoreline management 
plan (SMP) for Grand Lake. The 
SMP was a project FERC had re-
quested of GRDA, and is a 
comprehensive plan to man-
age the multiple resources 
and uses of Grand 
Lake’s 1,300 miles 
of shoreline. 

G
In it iat ives .2006

GRDA cannot change the market forces that are 
driving up energy costs across the nation; however, 
the Authority has spent the last three years making 
sure it is well positioned to move Oklahoma and 
its customers in the right direction to weather the 
challenging, and ever-changing market conditions. 
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The final plan will be designed to address the needs of the public 
and the operations of the shorelines in a manner consistent with 
GRDA’s licensing requirements for the operation of Pensacola 
Dam. The SMP process began in June 2005, when the Board ap-
proved a contract with Kleinschmidt and Associates to develop 
the plan. As part of the public process, interested stakehold-
ers and volunteers worked to address allowable use, permitting 
and land use. Throughout 2006, the working group committees 
prepared recommendations for inclusion in the SMP. These com-
mittee meetings were an opportunity for face-to-face discussions 

and allowed all parties to begin to reach a consensus on sensi-
tive lake and shoreline issues. After input from numerous 

public meetings, information newsletters and an SMP 
web site, a final draft will include the stakeholders’ 

future vision for Grand Lake and be adopted by 
the Authority’s Board of Directors and then 

submitted to FERC.

Being a Good Steward

GRDA capitalized on recent accomplishments of the ecosystems 
department in the areas of shoreline cleanup, global positioning 
satellite mapping and habitat enhancements. Armed with updated 
and reliable information, the Authority has been able to follow up 
with permitting, easements or other appropriate compliance or re-
mediation actions.  

After reviewing the lake-management initiatives, FERC offi-
cials appear to be pleased with the steps GRDA had taken and 
requested the Authority’s ecosystems department to make presen-
tations to other lake management agencies. 

Other 2006 initiatives, representative of GRDA fulfilling its 
conservation and reclamation responsibilities and working co-
operatively with other agencies, included continued lake cleanup 
efforts that began in the fall of 2005. While an historic drought 
(discussed in greater detail in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis in the Financial Section of this report) caused signifi-
cant operational and economic challenges, the low lake elevations 
helped to reveal illegal items dumped or placed by individuals 
in Lake Hudson. The Authority, in conjunction with game war-
dens and fisheries employees from the Oklahoma Department of 
Wildlife Conservation, removed bathtubs, old tractor tires, plastic 
barrels, and other makeshift “fish houses” placed to trap fish. The 
goal of the combined efforts was to encourage all fishermen to fol-
low the rules when visiting GRDA’s lakes.    

Utilizing Technology

One of GRDA’s environmental successes is the use of an infrared 
camera to identify possible sources of pollution early so they can 
be corrected. GRDA installed a camera, which uses infrared imag-
ing to detect thermal energy, on the Authority’s helicopter. From 
the air, the Authority has been able to identify failing septic sys-

tems as well as illegal dumping from boats.  

Identifying Synergies

Charged with a mission “to identify synergies that 
might be tapped or developed for watershed proj-

ects relating to Grand Lake and its tributaries, 
GRDA hosted and co-sponsored meet-

ings with attendees from four states: 
Oklahoma, Kansas, Missouri, and 

Arkansas.  Watershed planning 
and assessment, pollution con-

Coal-Fired Complex

 Chouteau, oK
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trol, storm water issues 
and water monitor-
ing were among the topics 
covered by university and re-
source agencies in conjunction 
with GRDA. Multi-state coopera-
tion is important to Grand Lake because 
the majority of the watershed lies in the ad-
jacent states. Other meetings addressed soil 
profiling for installing and inspecting waste water 
treatment facilities. The multi-state agencies share 
research, ideas and develop synergetic partnerships as 
they work on common water quality goals while also building 
new lines of communication with neighboring organizations. 

To further expand conservation and restoration efforts, GRDA 
is building the Duck Creek Waterfowl Refuge and Educational 
Complex. The 55-acre site is the first waterfowl refuge ever con-
structed by GRDA and will consist of six different wetland units 
at varying elevations to accommodate the migratory waterfowl. 
Several educational aspects will be incorporated to showcase each 
wetland area with detailed descriptions of all that can be observed. 
That list includes plants, soils, macro invertebrates, amphibians, 
reptiles, fish and fowl.

Reinvesting in Resources

FERC, in 2006, also issued a new 30-year license to the 
Authority to operate the Markham Ferry Project. The project 
includes the Robert S. Kerr Dam and Lake Hudson and was 
originally licensed in 1955.  Since 2005, GRDA has been op-
erating under an annual license pending the new license. The 
relicensing application is a very public process with oppor-
tunities for public comments. The scope of relicensing issues 
includes not only the turbines, generators and powerhouse, 
but also the 200 miles of shoreline and 12,000 surface acres of 
water. As part of the process, GRDA will address bald eagle 
protection, threatened and endangered species management, 
water quality, identification and management of historic prop-
erty and a recreation management plan with other resource 
agencies including the United States Fish and Wildlife Service 
and the Oklahoma Department of Wildlife Conservation. The 
relicensing allows for upgrades to be made to Kerr Dam to pro-
vide even more power and energy in the future.

These new initiatives come with increased expenses. GRDA is a 
self-supporting agency, and as such, no costs for these initiatives 

are paid for by the taxpayers of Oklahoma. The monetary benefit 
of such programs, which are not derived indirectly through lower 
mitigation costs associated with FERC licensing, must come from 
the direct collection of revenues. Revenues from power sales and 
lake fees fund operating expenses, which for lake management 
also includes GRDA lake patrol expenses for Grand Lake, Lake 
Hudson and the W.R. Holway Reservoir. Although the Authority 
has increased lake-related fees to better reflect the time and ex-
pense of staff devoted to lake management, when compared to 
the amount of time and resources expended, lake-related fees pay 
only a portion of the total costs. Even though lake management 
has moved towards more self-sufficiency, electricity revenues con-
tinue to subsidize lake management activities as GRDA fulfills the 
Authority’s conservation and reclamation requirements.

Positioning GRDA for the Future

Strong leadership with a vision for the future is perhaps as important 
now as when the Authority was first created. An historic strength 
of GRDA has been the reliable generation and delivery of energy to 
customers at a low cost. Generation and transmission of low-cost, re-
liable power and energy continue to be strengths of GRDA, but not 
without a great deal of hard work and tough decisions. 

While the Authority’s dedicated and talented workforce responded 
to the operational challenges presented by historic drought con-
ditions, the 20-year planned maintenance outage of Unit No. 2 
at the Coal-Fired Complex, and changing transmission rules, se-
nior management focused on mitigating the potential economic 
impact of specific risks. Significant economic threats included a 
decade-long flooding lawsuit, protecting contractual rights on fuel 
transportation contracts, and securing adequate generation to 
meet customers’ future load requirements. 

Management expended substantial time and effort towards suc-
cessful resolution of these multi-million dollar issues. Additional 
details about how GRDA has created a more stable financial en-
vironment and weathered the financial impacts of these various 
challenges is discussed in greater detail in the MD&A section of 
this report and in the notes to the financial statements. 

RobeRt S. KeRR Dam 

LocuSt GRove, oK
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Capitalizing on Opportunities

While GRDA cannot alter national energy pricing, management is 
making sure the Authority is in the best position it can be to prepare 
for the future of the agency and for GRDA customers. The elec-
tricity industry is changing rapidly both on the technological and 
regulatory fronts. CEO Kevin Easley takes a lead in keeping GRDA 
well informed on market changes. He serves on the Southwest 
Power Pool (SPP) Corporate Governance, Board of Directors/
Members Committee and Strategic Planning Committees. By 
maintaining a seat at the table where rules for the regional reliability 
counsel are adopted, he can help shape policy and help ensure con-
tinued reliable transmission service.  

Easley remains cognizant of current public power utility issues by 
serving on the board of directors of the American Public Power 
Association, where he has an opportunity to incorporate the best 
practices of our public utility peers. 

Local Economy
The Authority provides power and energy to some of the fast-
est growing populations in Oklahoma, and the resources provided 
by the Grand River are contributing to that growth. The incen-
tive of low-cost, reliable electricity continues to be a vital part of 
Oklahoma’s economic development. GRDA’s native customer base is 
broad and varied and is comprised of municipal, industrial and com-
mercial as well as electric cooperative customers. Many of GRDA’s 
customers have been buying power from GRDA for over 60 years. 

Growing with Lake Communities

Whether the waters of the Grand River are turning generators to 
produce electricity or providing a recreational playground, they 
are promoting Oklahoma’s growing economies. The Grand Lake 
“community” grows to be the third-largest concentration of peo-
ple in the state during busy holiday and summer weekends and 
has some of the most highly developed lake shores in Oklahoma. 
GRDA provides electricity to the Grand Lake region indirectly 
through Northeast Oklahoma Electric Cooperative (NEO), the 
Authority’s largest Oklahoma customer and one of the largest 
rural electric cooperatives in the state. Like GRDA, NEO is head-
quartered in Vinita and is experiencing significant and sustained 
growth as the lake area continues to grow. Since 1946, GRDA has 
provided for the needs of NEO’s customers, primarily residential 
and commercial loads. NEO’s customer base is also diverse and in-
cludes highly developed waterfront properties and marinas as well 

as a more rural agricultural landscape. As mentioned in the Notes 

to the Financial Statements, sales to NEO account for more than 

ten percent of GRDA’s annual revenues.

Attracting Jobs

Another indication of the economic impact of low-cost, reliable 

electric power and energy comes from industrial growth over the 

last few years. Even though GRDA’s prices have risen, in com-

parison to industry and market prices, the Authority’s rates are 

very competitive. As a result, customers have contracted to add 

or expand facilities as industries shift loads from other areas of 

the country. The majority of GRDA’s industrial and commer-

cial customers are located in the MidAmerica Industrial Park 

near Pryor. The park is owned and operated by the Oklahoma 

Ordnance Works Authority (OOWA), a public trust of the state 

of Oklahoma and the nation’s largest rural industrial park (by 

acreage). GRDA’s Transmission and Engineering Headquarters 

and the Coal-Fired Complex are located on the park’s perimeters 

allowing technical personnel to move quickly to respond to any 

customer needs. In addition, several Fortune 500 companies oper-

ate within the park. The Authority’s largest industrial customers 

include Solae, Air Products, and American Castings. GRDA has 

also contracted with, and OOWA has recently sold 800 acres to, 

an industrial prospect. Should the project be completed, the new 

company is anticipated to be the Authority’s largest industrial cus-

tomer by the end of 2008 and to bring several highly sought after 

jobs to benefit the residents in surrounding communities. Easy ac-

cess to inexpensive electricity and water were key factors in the 

company’s decision to locate in Oklahoma.

Providing Public Power

The Authority also sells wholesale electricity directly to 15 munic-

ipalities in Oklahoma as well as two cities along the state border.  

Cumulatively, municipal sales provide about half of GRDA’s an-

nual revenues. The municipal customer community of Coffeyville, 

Kansas, is the Authority’s largest customer. Located just across the 

state line, Coffeyville has a population of over 11,000 with a strong 

industrial base, accounting for two-thirds of GRDA’s power sales 

to the city. Many Oklahomans work in Coffeyville’s industrial 

park which includes a nitrogen fertilizer facility and other large 

employers such as divisions of John Deere, Amazon.com, Dixon 

Industries, and Acme Foundry. Other large employers in the city 

include the Coffeyville Community College, city government, and 

the Coffeyville Regional Medical Center.



The city of Stillwater is GRDA’s second-largest municipal customer. 

The county seat of Payne County, Stillwater is home to Oklahoma 

State University, Mercury MerCruiser (a boat engine manufacturer), 

and the Stillwater Medical Center, the city’s largest employers. With 

a population over 40,000, the community has a large industrial park 

served by Stillwater Power, the city’s public power utility, as well as a 

large and diverse residential and commercial base.  

Another large municipal customer is the city of Claremore, which 

is located north of Tulsa and boasts a population of approximately 

16,000. A 125-acre business park, owned and operated by the 

Claremore Industrial and Economic Development Authority, is home 

to many of the city’s largest employers, including CentriLift and AXH 

Air Coolers. Other large employers include Rogers State University 

and the Claremore Regional Hospital. Claremore Electric is the city-

owned electric utility supplying power to these businesses. 

Benefiting All Oklahomans

While GRDA has served many of the municipal customers since 

the Authority first began generating electricity from the Pensacola 

Dam in the 1940s, the relationships with approximately 35 other 

Oklahoma cities did not begin until 1985. GRDA serves these cit-

ies through the Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority (OMPA), 

a joint action agency which is also a component unit of the state of 

Oklahoma. OMPA was created to provide adequate, economical 

and reliable electric power for cities which owned their munici-

pal systems. Historically, all deliveries to OMPA were based on a 

25-MW, unit contingent, output contract based on the production 

from Unit No. 2 at the Coal-Fired Complex. Although many of the 

OMPA cities are located in the western part of the state and have 

not experienced the same growth levels as GRDA’s other customers, 

OMPA has contracted with GRDA for another 25 MW through 

firm schedules to begin later this year. As GRDA meets a portion 

of the growing needs in OMPA’s member cities, the Authority’s re-

lationship reaffirms GRDA’s role as a resource for all of Oklahoma. 

Four communities—Edmond, Ponca City, Altus and Duncan—ac-

count for over two-thirds of OMPA’s total member kWh sales.

Financial Operations
While the public views Grand Lake and Lake Hudson as the state’s 

premiere recreation destinations, GRDA’s financial results are driven 

primarily by utility operations. Sometimes taken for granted, the 

value of GRDA’s hydro generation was abundantly clear during the 

2006 drought when the hydro generators remained idle. The lack 

of hydro generation, in a year where the second coal-fired unit was 

scheduled for its most lengthy and costly maintenance outage, could 

have taken a toll on GRDA’s finances had the Authority not col-

lected sufficient revenues. The dispatchers at the Energy Control 

Center worked around the clock to keep reliable electricity flowing 

and made every decision with the interests of GRDA and its cus-

tomers in mind. Record amounts of purchased power were required 

to meet the customers’ loads, and as more energy was purchased 

from the spot market, customers felt the impact through the power 

cost adjustment. Still, GRDA was able to end the year with ade-

quate financial coverage, and customers continued to pay contract 

prices which were lower than market-based prices—a reminder that 

GRDA continues to be the best power supplier option for customers.  

To better prepare for the future and to clarify expectations about 

services to be provided, GRDA developed more standardized in-

dustrial and commercial contracts and terms and conditions for 

service. In addition to the industrial customers located near Pryor, 

GRDA also serves a Wal-Mart distribution center near Ramona. 

In early 2006, the nationwide retailer was complimentary about 

GRDA’s rates when renewing their relationship by signing the new 

standard form of contract. When these national entities verbalize 

how the services of GRDA enable them to be competitive within 

their own industries, it validates that actions taken in recent years 

are indeed moving Oklahoma in a grand direction.

Stabilizing Revenues

GRDA renegotiated power sales contracts with off-system firm 

customers in public power communities. Previous provisions 

contained rate-related termination clauses and terms which detri-

mentally functioned as “free call options.” The contracts contained 

no provisions to prevent remarketing to other entities at a profit. 

As with the industrial and commercial contracts, the Authority 

created standardized contracts with new language and terms more 

favorable to GRDA. Under the new agreements, GRDA can plan 

with more scheduling certainty, which is critical—more so than at 

any point in history—to operating in today’s market conditions. 

Most importantly, the new contracts included a rate increase and 

provided for revenue certainty. The additional long-term relation-

ship with OMPA was negotiated under the new contractual terms 

after evaluation and financial analysis. Revenue certainty, limited 

market exposure, and enhanced planning capabilities were the 

goals as GRDA looked to mitigate contractual risks by revising 

its relationships with off-system firm customers. GRDA negoti-

ated revised contracts to include the standardized language with 
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Kansas Municipal Energy Agency (KMEA); Paragould, Arkansas; 
and Poplar Bluff, Missouri. The ability to plan with increased cer-
tainty has contributed to the financial stability of the Authority.

Securing Reliability

The customer’s ability to secure firm transmission service is criti-
cal to the electric delivery process. GRDA discontinued service 
to two customers at the beginning of 2006 because the two cit-
ies—Broken Bow, Oklahoma, and Rolla, Missouri—could not 
secure firm transmission from the SPP. Oklahoma continues to be 
faced with severe electric transmission congestion, which is one of 
the reasons GRDA actively participates in committees of the SPP, 
where rules for new transmission markets are being formed.

The MD&A discusses specific factors, such as the record drought, 
coal delivery issues, growing customer loads, market prices, rate 
increases, and transmission constraints and whether they either 
contributed to or detracted from the overall, but still improving, 
financial position. The analysis also discusses changes in account 
balances indicating how GRDA’s financial position, following sev-
eral years of eroding finances, has stabilized over the last few years.

Future Economic Outlook
Even in the face of rising energy prices worldwide, GRDA is confi-
dent its beneficial mixture of coal and hydroelectric generation 
is still the most advantageous starting point when con-
sidering new generation sources. As customers renew 
their long-term commitments, the Authority gains 
the financial stability and flexibility to maintain 
GRDA’s low-cost generation mix advantage.  

An important indicator of the 
Authority’s future economic outlook 
is the support from long-term, 
all-requirements municipal and 
cooperative customers for 
the rate increase which 
became effective 
April 1, 2006. 

Customers recognize GRDA is a cost-of-service utility and that 
the benefits of a financially healthy GRDA ultimately flow back to 
them. Plans are underway for the upgrade of the Robert S. Kerr 
Dam turbine-generators and the Energy Control Center. Other 
capital projects include continued upgrades to telecommunications 
and transmission facilities. Most importantly, GRDA continues to 
pursue additional generation resources and vigorously defend con-
tractual fuel transportation rights. 

The year 2007 began with more normal hydro inflows and hav-
ing successfully completed the 20-year overhaul for the Coal-Fired 
Complex during 2004 and 2006. As a result, GRDA expects the 
future financial outlook to continue to improve. Additional details 
are provided in the MD&A.

Internal Control Framework   
and Budgetary Controls
Established by state statute as an agency of the state of Oklahoma, 
the Authority is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors 
that establishes policies. Although public power utilities are not sub-

ject to the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 
GRDA’s Board has created an environment reflecting clear 

expectations that GRDA conduct business in a pro-
fessional and responsible manner. Management is 

responsible for the establishment and mainte-
nance of the Authority’s internal controls, and 

that responsibility has been taken very 
seriously over the past three years. 

TRANSMISSION AND

ENGINEERING

HEADQUARTERS

PRyOR, OK
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Key to successful con-
trols is the tone reflected 

from the top, and GRDA 
directors gave substantial time, 

attention, leadership, and oversight 
as they communicated high expectations 

for management and employees. Directors 
reinforced the importance of sound business prac-

tices by personally participating in ethics training. Senior 
management attended sessions on updated Oklahoma ethics 

requirements as well as additional training provided for supervisory 
employees as part of ongoing supervisor training.

In an effort to embrace good internal controls, the Authority’s Board 
of Directors and management continued to adopt and revise rules and 
procedures throughout 2006. Representative of the commitment for 
an improved control environment is the support for employee profes-
sional development. Also key to a successful internal control system 
is that employees are knowledgeable about various requirements, 
remain current with changes, develop cost-effective and efficient 
solutions, and have management’s support as they consistently imple-
ment compliance procedures. Refinement of internal procedures and 
professional training for employees continues this year.

Strengthening Internal Controls

The Audit Committee actively worked throughout the year with 
a focus on evaluating the best financing options for future capi-
tal assets, improving financial and managerial reporting, as well 
as strengthening internal controls and accountability. During 
2006, committee members had an opportunity to meet with both 
GRDA’s independent auditors as well as a representative from the 
Oklahoma State Auditor and Inspector’s office. The Directors in-
structed management to continue to develop written policies and 
procedures as well as to continue with ongoing compliance efforts. 

As a result of the meetings, the Authority also engaged Maximus, a 
firm which provides a significant amount of training for American 
Public Power Association members, to review FERC and capital asset 

accounting procedures. As part of the engagement, Maximus evalu-
ated whether GRDA’s accounting was in compliance with FERC’s 
Uniform System of Accounts, generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples, and consistent with other public power utilities. Maximus 
assessed specific areas: reviewed GRDA records of financial trans-
actions; reviewed various GRDA processes utilized for the account 
distribution of pay and expenses of employees; reviewed allocation 
of administrative and general as well as clearing accounts; reviewed 
GRDA’s processes for determining if certain expenses should be capi-
talized or expensed; reviewed current fixed asset transaction processes 
and procedures; evaluated the need for an automated fixed asset and 
project accounting system; helped develop a template for financial 
budgeting; and evaluated accounting for revenues and expenses 
related to new proposed FERC guidelines for regional transmission 
organizations. Maximus and GRDA developed written documenta-
tion of the accounting for allocations and capitalizations, and followed 
up with additional employee training. While more work remains, sub-
stantial progress continued during 2006, and this intense scrutiny was 
a key component in identifying areas for ongoing improvement.  

Maintaining Accountability

The Authority’s control structure also has several layers of over-
sight. The first level of control comes directly from Oklahoma state 
statutes. Title 82, section 866, requires GRDA to establish corpo-
rate offices and financial accounts and requires GRDA directors 
to hire independent certified public accountants to complete an 
audit within 90 days after the close of the calendar year. The au-
dit report must be placed and kept on file with the Governor, State 
Treasurer, Oklahoma Department of Libraries, State Auditor and 
Inspector, and the Director of State Finance.  

Additionally, a second level of oversight comes from covenants 
made by GRDA to the Bond Fund Trustee and the bondhold-
ers. Among other requirements, the Authority has covenanted 
to keep accounts in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles and to file annual financial statements, which have 
been audited by an accounting firm with nationally recognized 
presence, with the Bond Fund Trustee within 120 days after the 
close of each calendar year. The Authority has also covenanted to 
adopt a preliminary budget in December and to finalize and adopt 
a budget by or before April of each calendar year. General Bond 
Resolution No. 4800 also requires triennial engineering reports 
that basically ensure the Authority has charged adequate rates, 
maintained facilities, and made any necessary repairs, renewals, 
replacements and improvements. Both the state statutes and the 
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general bond resolution address other protections for the citizens 

and bondholders. Significant covenants are discussed in the Long-

Term Debt Note to the Financial Statements.  

Ultimately, the effectiveness of internal controls comes from the 

support of the directors and management. That is one of the rea-

sons the Authority’s board reviews its own policies each year in 

meetings open to the public. Cumulatively, the policy-related ac-

tions reflect conservative long-range financial planning to better 

position GRDA to overcome future challenges.

Debt Management
As GRDA prepares to meet the public power needs of custom-

ers, addressing how to most economically pay for future projects 

is a priority. During 2006, GRDA took steps toward maintain-

ing the low-cost advantages of tax-exempt financing. In December 

2005, the Authority selected bond counsel. In April 2006, the 

Authority’s board of directors passed a resolution relating to re-

imbursement of pre-bond issuance costs for capital projects. In 

June 2006, GRDA selected a team of investment bankers, and in 

February 2007, GRDA authorized a bond issue up to the amount 

of GRDA’s statutory limit, although any specific project would 

have to be presented to the Board for additional approval. These 

measures were taken to allow the Authority to manage any time 

constraints which might be associated with optimal potential 

resource opportunities. GRDA continues to evaluate various re-

source, load and financing alternatives in conjunction with a team 

of bankers, engineers, attorneys, and the Oklahoma State Bond 

Advisor. The Authority’s debt management policies and bond 

covenants are discussed in the MD&A and in the notes to the fi-

nancial statements found in the financial section of this report.  

Cash and Risk Management
The Authority’s cash and risk management policies are discussed 

in the MD&A and, more specifically, in the notes to the financial 

statements found in the financial section of this report.

Independent Audit
The financial statements are the responsibility of management.  As 

required by state statutes and bond covenants, independent pub-

lic accountants are required to express an opinion of the Authority’s 

financial statements based on an audit. The annual audit of the fi-

nancial statements of the Authority has been completed by Deloitte 

& Touche LLP for the calendar year ended December 31, 2006, and 
their opinion is included in the financial section of this report along 
with the accompanying financial statements and notes.

Certificate of Achievement Award
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United 
States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Authority for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the calendar year 
ended December 31, 2005. This was the sixth consecutive year 
the Authority has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental agency must 
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive 
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally ac-
cepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A 
Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. 

GRDA believes the current comprehensive annual financial 
report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 
Program’s requirements, and the Authority is sub-
mitting it to the GFOA to determine eligibility 
for another certificate. 

Salina PumPed 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Grand River Dam Authority:

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Grand River Dam Authority (the “Authority”), a component 

unit of the State of Oklahoma, listed in the table of contents as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. These 

financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi-

nancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those stan-

dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 

of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing au-

dit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes ex-

amining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Authority at 

December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with ac-

counting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 14 through 19 is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is sup-

plementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. This supplementary information is the 

responsibility of the Authority’s management. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inqui-

ries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did 

not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

The other information listed in the table of contents as Introductory Section and Statistical Section is presented for purposes of 

additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Authority.  Such additional information has 

not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly, we express on 

opinion on this other information. 

March 30, 2007
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The following discussion and analysis of the Grand River Dam 
Authority’s (“GRDA” or the “Authority”) financial performance 
provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activities for the 
year ended December 31, 2006, in comparison with the prior year 
financial results. Please read it in conjunction with the financial 
statements, which follow this section.

using this Financial report
This annual financial report consists of a series of financial state-
ments and reflects the self-supporting, proprietary activities of the 
Authority funded primarily by the sale of electrical power and energy.

The state of Oklahoma reports the business-type activities of the 
Authority as a discretely presented major component unit.  

The basic financial statements presented in this report consist of the 
Statements of Net Assets, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets, the Statements of Cash Flows, and 
Notes to Financial Statements. 

Statements of net assets; Statements of revenues, 
expenses, and Changes in net assets; Statements 
of Cash Flows; and notes to Financial Statements
The Authority’s Net Assets and the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets provide an indication of the 
Authority’s financial health.

The Statements of Net Assets include all of the Authority’s assets 
and liabilities, using the accrual basis of accounting as well as an in-
dication about which assets can be utilized for general purposes and 
which are restricted as a result of bond covenants or other purposes.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Assets report all of the revenues and expenses during the time  
periods indicated.

The Statements of Cash Flows report the cash provided and used by 
operating activities, as well as other cash sources such as investment 
income or bond proceeds and cash payments for repayment of bonds 
and capital additions.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional explana-
tion and details about the financial information. 

Management ’s .Discussion .And .Ana lysi s

Financial highlights (Unaudited)

Net Assets
The Authority’s Net Assets increased $91 million during the past 
two years. Net Assets increased $54.4 million or by 52% in 2006, fol-
lowing a similar 54% increase or $36.6 million during 2005. During 
the same two year period, Total Assets remained relatively constant, 
decreasing by only $1.5 million while Total Liabilities decreased by 
$92.5 million.  

Current Assets increased another $4.7 million or 2% during 2006 af-
ter increasing  42% or by $65.5 million during 2005. The substantial 
increase during 2005 was primarily attributable to a $64.1 million 
increase in Current Investments reflecting shorter-term maturities of 
Construction Investments as well as the investment of incremental 
revenues provided by a 4.5% rate increase in July 2004. During 2006, 
current cash and investments decreased by a total of $26.3 million 
while the combined total of  current accounts receivable and under 
recovered fuel costs increased by $18.6 million. Inventories, includ-
ing both fuel and materials and supplies, also increased by a total of 
$12.4 million during 2006 accounting for the remaining shift in cur-
rent asset balances.

For the first time in several years, additions to Net Utility Plant 
exceeded depreciation expense reflecting efforts to invest in the in-
frastructure in preparation to meet future customer requirements. 
As discussed more in Capital Assets in the following pages, the Net 
Utility Plant portion of the Noncurrent Assets remained virtually un-
changed as net capital additions in excess of $26 million were more 
than current depreciation of $25.9 million. More detailed informa-
tion about changes in utility plant is also presented in the Notes to 
Financial Statements, Utility Plant.

Restricted Investments and other NonCurrent Assets remained con-
sistent with the prior year balances. Additional information about 
the balances is presented in the Notes to Financial Statements; 
Deposits and Investments, Receivables, and Costs to be Recovered 
from Future Revenues.

The most significant change in Net Assets is attributable to the re-
payment of long-term debt. Total Liabilities decreased by $49.9 
million or 8% during 2006 and $42.5 million or 6% during 2005, 
primarily related to scheduled bond principal payments of $61.5 
million and $58.2 million in 2006 and 2005. More specifics about 
bonds outstanding and amortization of bond related expenses is 
presented in the Notes to Financial Statements, Bonds Payable. 
Accounts Payable increased by $6.1 million and $10.1 million in 
2006 and 2005, offsetting the impact of the bond repayments to an 
extent. The majority of the 2005 increase in payables related to pay-
ments and accruals for contingencies relating to flooding lawsuits 
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      2006 �00� �00� 
net assets
assets:
 Current Assets   $ 224,355,142 $ �1�,��7,��� $ 1��,1��,�77
 Net Utility Plant     399,876,856 ���,�0�,��� �1�,�7�,7�1
 Restricted Investments     120,151,735 1�0,1�1,7�� 1�0,�7�,���
 Other Noncurrent Assets       7,693,303 �,�71,��1 ��,0��,�00
    Total Assets     752,077,036 7�7,���,0�� 7��,���,��0

Liabilities:
 Current Liabilities      98,694,983 ��,���,0�0 77,��1,���
 Noncurrent Liabilities     494,392,661 ���,��0,��1 �0�,���,1�1
    Total Liabilities     593,087,644 ���,0��,��1 ���,���,���

net assets:
 Invested in Capital Assets - net          666,401 (�0,���,0��) (�0,���,7��)
 Restricted for:
  Debt Service      40,479,164 ��,711,�1� �7,0��,���
  Construction            -     �7,�00,000 �7,�00,000
  Other Special Purposes         329,290 ���,1�� �7�,1�0
 Unrestricted        117,514,537 11�,���,�7� ��,0��,�1�
    Total Net Assets    $ 158,989,392 $ 10�,���,7�� $   ��,0��,���
           

Change in net assets
operating revenues:     
 Sales of Power   $ 276,823,553 $ �70,1��,0�� $ �11,��1,1��
 Other Operating Revenues   11,099,095 �,��7,��7 1�,��1,���
    Total Operating Revenues   287,922,648 �7�,�0�,��� ��7,00�,7��

non-operating revenues:
 Interest Income   12,631,718 11,7��,117 10,���,0��
 Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments  (171,278) (1,��7,�10) (1,��0,�7�)
 Income from non-utility operations   504,424 �77,�1� 10�,��1
 Deferral of Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues  920,067 - -

    Total Non-Operating Expenses   13,884,931 10,���,��� �,���,���

    Total Revenues   301,807,579 ���,��7,71� ���,��1,���

operating expenses:     
 Fuel       (65,511,589) (�1,���,��0) (��,���,01�)
 Purchased power - net   (57,142,790) (�7,��0,��1) (1�,���,���)
 Depreciation    (25,905,702) (��,���,010) (��,�7�,���)
 Maintenance    (24,090,585) (1�,���,1��) (�1,���,17�)
 Operation     (18,408,195) (1�,�0�,���) (1�,���,���)
 Administrative and general   (16,544,857) (�0,���,���) (1�,���,���)

    Total Operating Expenses   (207,603,718) (1��,���,�1�) (1��,�7�,�01)

Non-Operating Expenses:
 Interest Expense   (38,620,769) (��,771,0��) (��,�0�,���)
 Amortization of Cost to be Recovered from Future Revenues  -  (1�,1��,1��) (��,���,���)
 Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense  (2,008,215) (�,177,��0) (�,���,1��)
 Amortization of Bond Premium   784,751 7��,7�1 7��,7�1
    Total Non-Operating Expenses   (39,844,233) (��,�0�,���) (7�,��7,���)

    Total Expenses   (247,447,951) (���,��1,7��) (�1�,�7�,���)

    Net Increase in Net Assets   $    54,359,628 $ ��,�7�,�1� $ 1�,���,7��

Financial Highlights
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
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levels in 2005, followed by even higher purchase levels during 2006. 
Historically, purchases have averaged approximately 5% of total re-
sources, although the significantly higher power purchases represented 
18% and 12% of total energy resources in 2006 and 2005.

GRDA’s rate structure allows recovery of any corresponding in-
creases in fuel or purchased power through the Power Cost 
Adjustment (PCA). The Authority’s power cost adjustment mecha-
nism with customers is calculated on a rolling basis and is normally 
revised twice a year. GRDA collected surcharges for the PCA of $37 
million and $13 million during 2006 and 2005.  

discussed in the Notes to Financial Statements, Commitments 
and Contingencies. Other increases in both years related to main-
tenance and purchased power, with increased accounts payable 
balances in 2006 relating to the 20-year scheduled maintenance 
outage on Unit 2 at the Coal-Fired Complex.

Unrestricted Net Assets—the part of net assets used to finance 
day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt cov-
enants, enabling legislation or other legal agreements—remained 
consistent with the previous year. Likewise, Net Assets Restricted 
for Debt Service increased in proportion to the increasing principal 
portion of sinking fund payments for repayment of long-term debt. 
In contrast, Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related 
Debt increased a more substantial $81.2 million and moved to 
a positive balance primarily as a result of the decrease in Total 
Liabilities and the dissolution of a contractual restriction on $27.5 
million of construction funds.  

Operating Results
The Authority’s increase in Total Net Assets is a direct result of the 
GRDA Board of Directors’ ongoing efforts to improve and stabilize 
GRDA’s financial position. On July 1, 2004, a 4.5% base rate increase 
was implemented, the first price increase since January 1, 1993, and 
the first of two increases recommended by rate consultants. The sec-
ond increase on the energy component of the base rates originally 
contemplated for July 1, 2005, became effective April 1, 2006. 

Extremes in weather conditions also contributed directly to the 
fluctuations in generation and load swings during the past two 
years and ultimately, the financial results. Cool and wet conditions 
began in the summer and fall of 2004. The corresponding rainfall 
allowed the Authority to generate record amounts of power from 
its hydroelectric facilities for the year which combined with cooler 
temperatures and allowed GRDA to sell additional excess genera-
tion in a lucrative spot market at higher prices than those collected 
from contract customers. Those favorable weather and market 
conditions continued through the first half of 2005 with similar op-
erating and financial impacts, and enabled GRDA to postpone the 
effective date of the second rate increase in order to give customers 
additional time to evaluate their own rates. 

The weather conditions reversed and one of the worst droughts 
in Oklahoma history began in late summer of 2005. As the graph 
labeled Pensacola Dam and Robert S. Kerr Dam Generation re-
f lects, without any significant inf lows into the Grand River 
watershed, hydroelectric generators at both the Pensacola and 
Kerr Dams sat idle beginning in September 2005 and continued 
throughout most of 2006.   

Likewise, following the 2005 FERC inspection and canal repairs, the 
generators remained idle at the Salina Pumped Storage Project from 
October 2005 until June 2006 until Lake Hudson elevation levels were 
adequate to pump water to refill the W. R. Holway Reservoir.

Without adequate hydroelectric generation to help supplement the 
electricity produced at the GRDA Coal-Fired Complex, the Authority 
was forced to purchase power from the open market. As the drought 
wore on, GRDA’s purchased power costs continued to climb to record 
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operating income
Operating Income decreased by $9.3 million or 10% after increasing 
by $9.6 million or 12% the previous year. Operating Revenues in-
creased by $8.3 million during 2006 after increasing $52.6 million 
during 2005 while Operating Expenses increased $17.6 million dur-
ing 2006 after increasing $43 million during 2005.

The graph labeled Operating Income indicates both operating reve-
nues and operating expenses, and the difference in the column height 
reflects operating income. Operating Income is combined with other 
Non-operating Revenues, primarily interest and investment income 
to pay the Authority’s expenses. As can be seen in the Change in Net 
Assets graph to the right of the Operating Income graph, revenues have 
consistently exceeded expenses since the implementation of the rate in-
creases. The third graph, labeled Revenue Sources and Payment Types, 
shows the extent to which Sales of Power provide the majority of 
money to repay GRDA’s debt and cover operating costs. While the first 
two graphs reflect the income statement amounts, the third graph in-
cludes the debt payments, principal and interest, recovered through the 
Authority’s rates. GRDA’s rate structure is based on a cost-of-service 
approach of which debt service payments, fuel and purchased power, 
and other operating expenses are the principal components. Included 
in the statistical section of the Authority’s annual report each year is a 
table calculating Debt Service coverage.  

Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues set new record highs during 2005 and 2006, 
with Sales of Power driving the increases. Sales of Power include any 
PCA surcharge or are net of any PCA credits as the “true up” adjust-
ment passes through the cost of the generating fuel and purchased power. 
The revenues also reflect an accrual for any over or under collected fuel 
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cost. Sales of Power included accruals of $5.8 million and $11.8 million 
of Under Recovered Fuel Costs during 2006 and 2005. While the 2005 
record revenues were attributable to record growth in sales, the 2006 
record revenues were driven partially by the pass-through of fuel and 
purchased power costs collected through the PCA surcharge. Combined 
sales to municipals, industrials and cooperatives were equal to sales 
for the previous year. While overall revenues were up from a combina-
tion of the PCA surcharge and higher rates, sales were lower. Because of 
transmission constraints and the limited availability of excess energy, off-
system spot sales were down substantially during 2006.
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Operating Expenses 
Operating Expenses increased by $17.6 million and $43.0 million 
during 2006 and 2005 with record purchased power driving the 
increases in both years. The impact of the prolonged drought and 
associated lack of hydro-generation was two-fold. The total hy-
dro-generation from Pensacola Dam, Robert S. Kerr Dam, and the 
Salina Pumped Back Storage was only 5% of the energy resources 
during 2006 which was in vast contrast to the 19% provided by hy-
dro only two years before. Not only was GRDA forced into the spot 
market to replace the generation normally provided by the dams 
and pumped back project, but without the peaking power avail-
able, the purchases were made at high load usage periods and came 
at correspondingly high prices. Also contributing to the rising op-
erational costs were increases in the price of fuel burned. Coal 
and freight are the largest operating expenses at the Coal-Fired 
Complex. To help address difficulty in obtaining coal deliveries, 
GRDA entered into leases for additional rail cars and has contin-
ued to pursue improved coal deliveries and price protection. As the 
graph indicates, the rising cost of coal and freight has increased the 
average cost of fuel burned per MMBtu 12% and 4% in 2006 and 
2005. Fuel costs increased $3.5 million during 2006 although the 
net thermal generation decreased 6% during the year, partially as a 
result of the extended outage relating to Unit 2 and efforts to con-
serve coal inventories in order to provide reliability during peak 
generation periods. The 20-year outage of Unit 2 also drove the 
$8.4 million increase in maintenance costs as GRDA personnel 
along with contractors successfully completed over 600 work or-
ders relating to several major projects.  

Significant assets and debt administration

Capital Assets
Net Utility Plant increased from $399.4 million to $399.9 mil-
lion, or by $472 thousand. After several years of decreasing net 
plant balances, the increase reflects the investments in capital assets 
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to provide future benefits to GRDA customers offset by current 
year depreciation of $25.9 million. As the Note to the Financial 
Statements, Utility Plant indicates, the majority of Net Utility 
Plant consists of an economical mixture of hydroelectric and ther-
mal generation resources and a transmission system for the delivery 
of power and energy.

The major additions during the year included a large assortment 
of information technology projects.  Projects included a rebuild of 
GRDA’s microwave communication system, replacement of voice 
telecommunications, a rebuild of the network infrastructure, as 
well as replacing metering and software. Other projects include 
an upgrade of the Energy Control Center computers and the ini-
tiation of facility renovations to meet North American Electric 
Reliability Corporation criteria. In addition, Unit 2 at the Coal-
Fired Complex underwent the largest scheduled maintenance 
outage ever performed during its 20 years of operation. While the 
unit was out of service, capital projects included the complete re-
placement of tubing in the reheater section of the unit’s boiler, 
replacement of air heater baskets and replacement of the com-
puter control system on the unit’s flue gas desulfurization unit. 
Additional upgrades to the transmission lines and substations im-
proved reliability of the transmission system.

Restricted Assets
The Authority’s bond resolutions require reserve funds be set aside. 
The General Bond Resolution requires the Bond Service Reserve ac-
count be equal to the “Maximum Aggregate Bonds Service” and the 
Reserve and Contingency Fund be equal to 25% of that same amount. 
The restricted amounts of $96,121,388 shown as bond service reserve 
and the $24,030,347 shown as reserve and contingency are the re-
quired amounts to be set aside to comply with the bond covenants. 

Additional amounts are restricted for the bond service sinking fund pay-
ments made to the trustee for annual principal and semiannual interest 
payments. The amounts reflected as restricted for construction relate 
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to two different construction accounts. The final restricted accounts for 
special purposes relate to wildlife mitigation pursuant to hydro licens-
ing requirements. Each of the restrictions is discussed in further detail in 
the Notes to Financial Statements, Deposits and Investments.

Regulatory Assets
The Authority follows Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 71 in regulatory reporting which requires 
utilities to match costs with the same time period the revenues are 
collected. From 1985 until 1997, non-cash expenses relating to de-
preciation and amortization of bond expenses exceeded the amount 
of revenues collected to recover the principal portion of debt ser-
vice, creating a substantial deferred credit. From 1997 until 2005 
GRDA recovered the regulatory asset as the principal compo-
nent of the debt increased annually. The remaining $20 million of 
deferrals of depreciation and amortization of bond expenses was re-
covered during 2005. 

In 2006, the only remaining regulatory asset relates to the deferral 
of interest costs related to the 2002B capital appreciation bond is-
sue. The $2.8 million balance in Costs to Be Recovered from Future 
Revenues includes the cumulative deferral of interest expense net 
of any interest income earned on the 2002B Construction Fund 
Investments. The deferred asset will continue to increase annually 
until revenues are collected to pay the 2002B principal and cumu-
lative interest at maturity on June 1, 2014. The 2002 B Accrued 
Interest Payable is reflected in the financial statements as a Non-cur-
rent Liability. For more detail, see the Notes to Financial Statements, 
Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues.

Long-term Debt  
The repayment of GRDA’s out-
standing bonds continued to 
impact the change in net as-
sets in a positive manner. The 
Authority’s trustee paid to 
bondholders principal pay-
ments of $61.5 million and 
$58.2 million on June 1, 2006 
and 2005.

As indicated in the Note to the 
Financial Statements, Bonds 
Payable, GRDA makes monthly 
sinking fund payments to the 
bond trustee, which are reflected 
as Current Investments “re-
stricted for bond service.” The 
bondholders are then paid annual 
principal payments on June 1 and 
semiannual interest payments 

on December 1 and June 1 of each year. GRDA’s debt service payments 
were structured to remain fairly constant at approximately $96 million 
per year through 2013. The principal and interest totaling approximately 
$34 million on the 2002B capital appreciation bonds will be repaid on 
June 1, 2014. The graph provides an indication of how much principal 
and interest are due each year until the bonds mature in 2014.

The 1993, 1995, and 2002 bonds outstanding are not subject to re-
demption prior to the maturity of the bonds. In conjunction with the 
bonds, the Authority has made certain covenants and must file con-
tinuing disclosures with bond repositories. Moody’s Investors Service, 
Inc., Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Fitch Ratings, Ltd., 
gave the 1995, 2002, and a portion of the 1993 issues ratings of Aaa, 
AAA and AAA, respectively since municipal bond insurance policies 
were purchased as the bonds were issued.  

The financial community recognized the Board’s willingness to collect 
sufficient rates and GRDA’s customer’s willingness to pay the cost-of-
service pricing through improved rating outlooks. The rating agencies 
continue to monitor GRDA’s underlying credit ratings and update their 
current ratings applicable to any ratings. Fitch Ratings, Ltd was the first 
to recognize the efforts of the Authority’s directors and management to 
improve GRDA’s finances when they affirmed their A- rating and raised 
their outlook to positive in March 2005. In March 2006, Standard and 
Poor’s Ratings Services reaffirmed their rating of BBB+ and improved 
their rating outlook from negative to stable. In January 2007, Moody’s 
Investor Service, Inc also affirmed their A2 rating and also revised their 
outlook on GRDA from negative to stable. The outlook improvements 
reaffirmed many of the hard financial decisions GRDA made over the 
last three years to improve the financial stability and to continue the role 
of a low-cost, competitive power supplier.

Change in Financial Position
GRDA is in a much stronger financial position than it was two years 
ago. Total Net Assets have more than doubled from $68.1 million to 
$159.0 million. After a decade of depleting cash and investments in 
order to subsidize electric rates, the impact of the rate increases has 
provided stable debt coverage during two years marked with drought 
and major scheduled outages. The Authority has paid down debt of 
$61.5 million and $58.2 million during 2006 and 2005. While the 
dollar impacts are significant, just as important are the actions that 
have been taken to prepare for the future of GRDA and customers. 
With the finances more stable, the focus has turned more to GRDA’s 
public power mission and obligations. Long-term relationships are 
being renewed with customers as GRDA works to protect their low-
prices and reliable service. A stronger financial position enables the 
Authority to follow through with the public power commitments.

management’s discussion and analysis
This report is intended to provide our customers, bondholders, cit-
izens of the state of Oklahoma, and other interested parties with a 
general overview of the Authority’s financial position and to indicate 
accountability for the revenues GRDA receives.  

Questions about this report or requests for additional financial infor-
mation should be directed to the Authority at:

  Grand River Dam Authority
  PO Box 409, 226 West Dwain Willis Avenue
  Vinita, Oklahoma 74301-0409
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Statements of Net Assets    
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005    
    
      2006 �00�  
ASSETS:    
 CURRENT ASSETS:   
  Cash and cash equivalents—general operating account $       7,177,412 $    1�,���,0��
  Investments 116,530,866 1��,���,��0
  Accounts receivable—net  42,265,120 ��,���,�0�
  Accrued interest receivable 1,846,614 1,���,���
  Fuel stock   15,940,305 �,1�1,���
  Materials and supplies 23,485,299 �1,���,70�
  Under recovered fuel costs 16,568,784 10,7��,�1�
  Prepaid assets 540,742 ���,771
     Total current assets 224,355,142 �1�,��7,���
    
 NONCURRENT ASSETS:   
  Restricted investments 120,151,735 1�0,1�1,7�� 
  Other receivables 1,855,422 �,���,���
  Net utility plant—at original cost less depreciation 399,876,856 ���,�0�,���
  Other noncurrent assets:    
   Costs to be recovered from future revenues 2,842,807 1,���,7�0
   Unamortized debt expense 2,962,060 �,��1,1��
   Non-utility property—at original cost 33,014 ��,01�
     Total other noncurrent assets 5,837,881 �,�1�,�1�
     Total noncurrent assets 527,721,894 ���,0��,���
    
     Total assets 752,077,036 7�7,���,0��
    

LIABILITIES:
 CURRENT LIABILITIES:   
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 31,113,736 ��,0��,107
  Accrued interest payable 2,536,247 �,��0,���
  Bonds payable—current portion  65,045,000 �1,�10,000
     Total current liabilities 98,694,983 ��,���,0�0

 NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:    
  Bonds payable—net 479,407,817 ���,�7�,1�7
  Unamortized proceeds on debt service forward purchase agreements 7,693,107 �,��1,���
  Other noncurrent liabilities 2,442,489 �,��0,7��
  Accrued interest payable 4,849,248 �,���,771
      Total noncurrent liabilities 494,392,661 ���,��0,��1
 
     Total liabilities 593,087,644 ���,0��,��1

NET ASSETS:                
 Invested in capital assets, including costs to be recovered from future revenues—net of related debt 666,401 (�0,���,0��)   
 Restricted for:    
  Debt service 40,479,164 ��,711,�1�    
  Construction          �7,�00,000    
  Other special purposes 329,290 ���,1��    
 Unrestricted   117,514,537 11�,���,�7�   
    
     Total net assets $ 158,989,392 $ 10�,���,7�� 

See notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
For The Years Ended December 31, 2006 And 2005

    
      2006 �00�
  
OPERATING REVENUES:  
 Sales of power   $ 276,823,553 $ �70,1��,0��
 Other operating revenues   11,099,095 �,��7,��7
  
      Total operating revenues   287,922,648 �7�,�0�,���
  
OPERATING EXPENSES:  
 Fuel      (65,511,589) (�1,���,��0)
 Purchased power—net   (57,142,790) (�7,��0,��1)
 Depreciation   (25,905,702) (��,���,010)
 Maintenance   (24,090,585) (1�,���,1��)
 Operation  (18,408,195) (1�,�0�,���)
 Administrative and general   (16,544,857) (�0,���,���)
  
     Total operating expenses   (207,603,718) (1��,���,�1�)
  
OPERATING INCOME   80,318,930 ��,�1�,�77
  
NONOPERATING REVENUES AND (EXPENSES):  
 Interest income   12,631,718 11,7��,117
 Net decrease in the fair value of investments   (171,278) (1,��7,�10)
 Income from non-utility operations   504,424 �77,�1�
 Interest expense   (38,620,769) (��,771,0��)
 Amortization of costs to be recovered from future revenues   920,067  (1�,1��,1��)
 Amortization of debt discount and expense   (2,008,215) (�,177,��0)
 Amortization of bond premium   784,751 7��,7�1
  
     Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)   (25,959,302) (��,0�1,0��)
  
NET INCREASE IN NET ASSETS   54,359,628 ��,�7�,�1�
  
NET ASSETS—Beginning of year   104,629,764 ��,0��,���
  
NET ASSETS—End of year   $ 158,989,392 $ 10�,���,7��
  
  
See notes to financial statements.  
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Statements of Cash Flows
For The Years Ended December 31, 2006 And 2005
  
      2006 �00�
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  
 Received from user charges   $ 301,750,812 $ ���,�7�,���  
 Payments to employees for services   (25,573,265) (��,�0�,111) 
 Payments to suppliers for goods and services   (193,763,315) (1��,1��,7��) 
  
     Net cash provided by operating activities   82,414,232 111,�0�,���  
  
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:  
 Additions to utility plant   (26,152,560) (�,�7�,���) 
 Repayment of principal   (61,510,000) (��,�1�,000) 
 Interest paid   (32,205,732) (��,��1,���) 
  
     Net cash used in capital and related financing activities   (119,868,292) (��,�1�,7�1) 
  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:  
  Interest received   11,566,580 �,�1�,���  
 Purchases of securities   (26,493,019) (��,0�7,���) 
 Proceeds from sales and maturities of securities   43,213,826 1�,���,���  
  
     Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities   28,287,387 (��,��0,���) 
  
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (9,166,673)    (1�,���,���) 
  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year   16,344,085     ��,0�0,711  
  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year   $      7,177,412     $   1�,���,0��  
  
NONCASH ITEMS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:  
 Unrealized loss on investments   $        (171,278)    $    (1,��7,�10) 
  
 Amortization of premiums and discounts   $          272,268     $���,���  
  
 Amortization of debt service forward purchase agreements   $      1,198,457     $      1,1��,��7  
  
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  
 Operating income   $   80,318,930     $   ��,�1�,�77  
 Noncash items included in net operating income:  
  Income from nonutility operations   504,424     �77,�1�  
  Depreciation   25,905,702     ��,���,010  
  Changes in assets and liabilities:  
   Receivables:  
    Customers   (5,008,052) (�,7�7,��7) 
    Other   (6,764,737) �0�,1��  
 Fuel stock    (10,818,373) ���,���  
 Materials and supplies   (1,549,590) 1�1,�7�  
 Other     (487,172) ���,0��  
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   6,068,628 10,1�7,���  
 Over (under) recovered fuel costs   (5,816,468) (11,7��,�1�) 
 Other noncurrent liabilities   60,940 1��,���  
  
      Net cash provided by operating activities   $   82,414,232 $ 111,�0�,���  
  

See notes to financial statements.  
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Notes to Financial Statements
As of And For The Years Ended December 31, 2006 And 2005

1. Summary oF SiGniFiCant aCCountinG PoLiCieS
Nature of Business—The Grand River Dam Authority (the “Authority”) was created as a nonappropriated agency by the State of Oklahoma 
in 1935 as a conservation and reclamation district. The Authority has the power to control, store, preserve, and distribute the waters of the 
Grand River and its tributaries for any useful purpose and to develop and generate water power, electric power, and electric energy within the 
boundaries of the Authority and to buy, sell, resell, interchange, and distribute electric power and energy. The Grand River lies entirely within 
Oklahoma, but its drainage basin also extends over the states of Arkansas, Kansas, and Missouri. As part of the Authority’s licensing agree-
ments, the Authority also has lake area responsibilities. The costs of those activities are funded primarily through electricity sales to rural 
cooperative, municipal, industrial and off system customers located in Oklahoma, Kansas, Missouri, and Arkansas. The Authority’s financial 
statements are included in the State of Oklahoma Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as a discrete proprietary component unit.

Joint Participant—Among the Authority’s assets is Coal-Fired Complex Unit 2 (which is 62% owned by the Authority and 38% owned by 
KAMO Power (“KAMO”)). Additionally, the Authority and KAMO jointly own an integrated transmission system. These financial statements 
and notes to financial statements include the transactions for the Authority’s ownership of these assets.

Basis of Accounting—The Authority is licensed to operate under the Federal Power Act, which requires the use of the uniform system of ac-
counts, prescribed for public utilities and licensees. The Authority is a cost of service organization and establishes its rates to provide revenues 
sufficient to pay all expenses necessary for the operation and maintenance of the system, all payments, transfers, and deposits related to out-
standing debt, and all other charges or obligations imposed by law or contract.

Basis of Presentation—The Authority’s basic financial statements conform to the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(“GASB”) Statement No. 34 (“Statement 34”), Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local 
Governments, and related pronouncements. Statement 34 establishes standards for external financial reporting for all state and local govern-
mental entities, which includes a statement of net assets, a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and a statement of cash 
flows. It requires the classification of net assets into three components—invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unre-
stricted. These classifications are defined as follows:

Invested in Capital Asset—Net of Related Debt—This component of net assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, costs to 
be recovered from future revenues, and unamortized debt expense reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt 
proceeds at year end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net assets component as the unspent proceeds.

Restricted—This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net assets use through external constraints imposed by creditors 
(such as through debt covenants), contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitu-
tional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets—This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital 
assets—net of related debt.”

The financial statements of the Authority are prepared under the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and ex-
penses are recognized when incurred. The Authority has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as all Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) opinions, unless those pronouncements 
conflict with GASB pronouncements.

Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted cash in banks, unrestricted money market funds, and unre-
stricted certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less. Balances are presented on a net basis to the extent such balances 
are subject to the right of offset.

Investments—Investments principally comprise U.S. government securities, U.S. government agencies, Guaranteed Investment Agreements, 
money market funds, and certificates of deposit. The Authority reports investments, except for certain money market investments and nonpar-
ticipating investment contracts, at fair value. Fair value is determined using quoted market prices.

Fuel Stock—Fuel stock is carried at average cost and includes the costs of coal, freight, and labor. These amounts are charged to expense as the 
fuel is consumed.

Materials and Supplies—Materials and supplies are valued using the average cost and specific identification methods.
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Under/Over Recovered Fuel Costs—The Authority’s rate structure as approved by the Board of Directors provides for the Authority to make 
adjustments in revenue collections from municipal, industrial, cooperative and off-system firm customers to recover variations between estimated 
and actual fuel costs incurred by the Authority. This adjustment, referred to as the Power Cost Adjustment (“PCA”), is generally calculated 
twice each year. The Authority’s base rate is calculated using 13 mills as an estimated PCA. The cumulative difference between the actual fuel 
costs and the 13 mill base PCA rate is reflected as either an asset (“under recovery”) or liability (“over recovery”) in the Authority’s accompanying 
Statements of Net Assets, because such amounts will either be collected from or refunded to customers of the Authority in subsequent periods.

Utility Plant and Depreciation—The cost of utility plant includes direct material, direct labor and indirect costs such as engineering, supervi-
sion, transportation, insurance, and interest expense (net of applicable interest income) capitalized during construction. The Authority follows 
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) electric plant instruction guidelines in defining capital assets. Generally, assets which 
have a cost of $500 or more at the date of acquisition and have an expected useful life of one year or more, and are not consumable, are capi-
talized. The cost of maintenance and repairs to property is expensed. The original cost of property together with removal cost, less salvage, is 
charged to accumulated depreciation at such time as property is retired and removed from service. Gain or loss is recognized on retirements and 
dispositions that management believes to be unusual in nature.

Depreciation is computed on the cost of utility plant by the composite method over the following estimated useful lives and annual deprecia-
tion percentages:

 Coal-fired plants �� years  �.�0 %
 Hydraulic production plants  �7 years   1.1� %  
 Transmission system �0 years   �.�� %  
 Other properties and production plant �–�0 years   �0.00–�.�� %

Long-Lived Assets—The Authority reviews long lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances have indicated that the carrying amount of its assets might not be recoverable. Management of the Authority 
has determined that no impairment adjustments needed to be recognized in 2006 or 2005.

Asset Retirement Obligations—The Authority periodically reviews the need to provide for asset retirement obligations (in accordance with 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 143) and has concluded that at present the Authority does not have any such asset 
retirement obligations, nor does the Authority have any conditional asset retirement obligations as defined in FASB Interpretation No. 47.

Costs to Be Recovered from Future Revenues—Certain items included in operating costs are recovered by the Authority through rates set 
by the Board of Directors. The Authority, as a self regulated utility, is subject to the requirements of SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation. SFAS No. 71 provides that certain costs that would otherwise be charged to expense can be deferred as regulatory 
assets, based on the expected recovery from customers in future rates. Historically, recognition of these costs was deferred to the extent that 
such costs were later included in rates charged by the Authority in future years. During 2005, the Authority fully recovered previously deferred 
costs, primarily depreciation on debt-funded plant, amortization of debt discount and expense, and amortization of losses on advance refunding 
of long term debt from as far back as 1985 as the revenues were collected.

Separately and additionally, in 2004, the Authority determined that it should defer interest costs related to the 2002B capital appreciation bond 
issue and expense these costs in 2014, when the related bonds mature. The Authority believes it will fully recover the deferred interest expense, 
net of any interest income earned on unexpended related construction funds, during 2013 and 2014 as revenues are collected to pay the accrued 
interest and principal on June 1, 2014. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Authority had approximately $2.8 and $1.9 million, respectively, of 
costs to be recovered from future revenues.

Management continuously monitors the future recoverability of regulatory assets, and when, in management’s judgment, any future recovery be-
comes impaired, the amount of the regulatory asset will be reduced or written off, as appropriate.

Derivative Instruments—The Authority follows SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments, and its amendments, which establish ac-
counting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and for hedging activities. It requires that all derivatives be recognized as assets or 
liabilities in the statement of net assets and be measured at fair value. This recognition is referred to as “mark to market” accounting. SFAS No. 
133 provides an exception, under certain circumstances, to this accounting if a derivative instrument is deemed to represent a transaction in the 
normal course of business. The Authority has energy exchange contracts with other electric utilities that are accounted for as normal purchases 
in accordance with SFAS No. 133. (Note 11)

Unamortized Debt Discount or Premium and Expense—Debt discount or premium and expense are amortized using the bonds outstanding 
method over the periods of the applicable issues.

Unamortized Gains and Losses on Advance Refunding of Long-Term Debt—Recognition of gains and losses realized on advance refunding 
of long-term debt is deferred and amortized over the life of the related refunding issues using the bonds outstanding method.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses—Operating revenues include the sales of power and other operating revenues such 
as rents from electric property, consisting primarily of revenues from transmission and ancillary services. Other operating revenues also in-
clude sales of water and any sulfur dioxide emissions credits conversions. Operating expenses include costs to operate and maintain the 
Authority’s generation and transmission assets including fuel, purchased power, depreciation and related administrative and general expenses. 
Nonoperating revenues include interest income, amortization of forward purchase agreements, net increase in the fair value of investments, and 
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income from nonutility operations. Nonoperating expenses include interest expense, amortization of costs to be recovered from future revenues 
and amortization of bond-related expenses.

Purchased Power—Purchased power includes the cost of electricity purchased for resale and settlements for exchange of electricity.

Income Taxes—The Authority is a governmental agency organized under the laws of the State of Oklahoma and is not subject to federal or 
state income taxes.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards—The following accounting standards have been recently issued and will be adopted as applicable by 
the Authority in future years:

Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section—an amendment of NCGA Statement 1. This statement establishes and 
modifies requirements related to the supplementary information presented in a statistical section. This statement was effective for the Authority 
during the 2006 fiscal year and did not have a material impact on the Authority’s financial statements. 

Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement establishes 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for postemployment health care and other benefits if provided separately from a pension plan. 
This statement will become effective for the Authority in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007. Management has not yet determined the im-
pact of this statement on the Authority’s financial statements.

Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Legislation—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34. This statement clarifies the meaning of the 
phrase legally enforceable as it applies to restrictions imposed on net asset use by enabling legislation and by specifying the accounting and re-
porting for those restricted net assets. This statement was effective for the Authority in 2006.

Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits. This statement establishes accounting standards for termination benefits. This statement 
will become effective for the Authority in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007. Management has not yet determined the impact of this 
statement on the Authority’s financial statements.

Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues. This state-
ment establishes criteria that governments will use to ascertain whether the proceeds received from collecting specific receivables or specific 
future revenues should be reported as revenue or as a liability. This statement will become effective for the Authority in the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2007. Management has not yet determined the impact of this statement on the Authority’s financial statements.

Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations. This statement addresses accounting and financial 
reporting standards for pollution (including contamination) remediation obligations, which are obligations to address the current or potential 
detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation activities such as site assessments and cleanups. This state-
ment will become effective for the Authority in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008. Management has not yet determined the impact of 
this statement on the Authority’s financial statements.

2. dePoSitS and inveStmentS
The Authority’s General Bond Resolution No. 4800 (“Resolution No. 4800”), which provides for the issuance of revenue bonds, generally de-
fines eligible investment securities as (1) bonds or other obligations which are direct obligations of the United States of America, (2) bonds or 
other specifically named obligations which are indirectly guaranteed by the United States of America, (3) direct and general obligations of any 
state which are rated in the two highest major categories of Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”), (4) certificates of deposit issued by a savings 
and loan association or a bank and trust company which are collateralized by the securities described in (1) and (2) or which are fully insured 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), (5) repurchase agreements with banks or government bond dealers which are secured 
by securities described in (1) and (2), (6) investment agreements with companies or banks whose senior debt obligations are rated no lower than 
the second highest category of Moody’s or S&P, (7) short term obligations of any state or political subdivision which are rated in the highest 
short-term category by Moody’s or S&P, and (8) any cash swap or similar arrangement of the Bond Fund Trustee, the investments of which are 
limited to securities described in (1) and (2).

The Authority carries its investments at fair value except for certain nonparticipating investment contracts, such as its Guaranteed Investment 
Agreements, which are carried at amortized cost. The Guaranteed Investment Agreements are not classified as collateral risk because they are 
not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The Authority and trustees monitor collateral pledged to secure deposits in 
financial institutions for compliance with rules and regulations promulgated by the Oklahoma State Treasurer.

The Authority’s deposits are categorized as indicated below to indicate the level of risk assumed by the Authority as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Interest-Rate Risk—Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The 
Authority has no formal policy to address exposure to fair value losses resulting from changes in interest rates. However, Resolution No. 4800 requires 
that investments not mature later than such times as the funds shall be necessary to provide monies when needed for payments to be made from the 
Bond Service Account, and in the case of the Bond Service Reserve Account, unless otherwise provided in a Supplemental Resolution, not later than 
fifteen (15) years from the date of investment. Resolution No. 4800 provides that general fund investments shall not mature later than five (5) years 
from the date of investment. Resolution No. 4800 further provides that Reserve and Contingency investments shall not mature later than ten (10) 
years from the date of investment. The Authority attempts to hold the investments to maturity which minimizes the exposure to rising interest rates.
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Authority had the following investments and maturities:

        2006
                                 Investment Maturities (in Years)
investment type  Fair Value Less Than 1 1 - � � - 10 
   
U.S. gov’t/agency securities   $ 162,056,672     $ 75,524,587     $   41,973,159     $ 44,558,926  
    
Money market funds   10,933,532     10,933,532                
    
Guaranteed investment contracts   68,400,000            68,400,000         
    
Total investments   $ 241,390,204     $ 86,458,119     $ 110,373,159     $ 44,558,926 

        �00�
                                             Investment Maturities (in Years)
investment type   Fair Value Less Than 1 1 - � � - 10 More Than 10 
        
U.S. gov’t/agency securities    $ 1�1,�1�,��1     $ ��,��7,7�7     $ ��,��7,���     $   ��,�0�,1�0     $ 1,���,���  
     
Money market funds    ��,�0�,�11     ��,�0�,�11                       
     
Guaranteed investment contracts    7�,�77,��1     7,�77,��1            ��,�00,000         

Total investments  $ ���,001,70�     $ �1,���,���     $ ��,��7,���     $ 10�,70�,1�0     $ 1,���,���  
 

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Authority had the following U.S. government/agency investments and maturities:

        2006
                                 Investment Maturities (in Years)
investment type  Fair Value Less Than 1 1 - � � - 10 
   
General operations    $   21,494,638     $   9,192,900     $ 12,301,738     $            - 
Board designated     22,500,000            22,500,000         
Bond service       39,043,437     39,043,437                
Construction       27,288,250     27,288,250                
Bond service reserve     27,700,000                   27,700,000  
Reserve and contingency   24,030,347            7,171,421     16,858,926  
    
Total U.S. gov’t/agency securities    $ 162,056,672     $ 75,524,587     $ 41,973,159     $ 44,558,926  

        �00�
                                             Investment Maturities (in Years)
investment type   Fair Value Less Than 1 1 - � � - 10 More Than 10 
        
General operations    $   ��,���,�0�     $   7,��0,007     $ �1,���,7�7     $             -          $          -       
Board designated    1�,000,000            1�,000,000                
Bond service      ��,��7,7�0     ��,��7,7�0                       
Construction                                   
Bond service reserve    �7,700,000                   �7,700,000         
Reserve and contingency    ��,0�0,��7            1�,100,���     7,�0�,1�0     1,���,���  
     
Total U.S. gov’t/agency securities    $ 1�1,�1�,��1     $ ��,��7,7�7     $ ��,��7,���     $ ��,�0�,1�0     $ 1,���,���  

Concentration of Credit Risk—Credit risk is the risk that the insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill his obligation. 
Mortgage backed securities (“MBS”) are not rated because the agencies that issue such securities did not apply to any of the nationally recog-
nized statistical rating organizations (“NRSRO”) such as Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”) and Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) for ratings on 
their MBS. However, the agencies carry AAA ratings from both Moody’s and S&P for their debentures, and the MBS which carry their label 
(e.g. Federal National Mortgage Association—“FNR”; Federal Home Loan Bank—“FHR”) are direct obligations of the agencies. With the ex-
ception of Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”), the agencies have the backing of the U.S. Government; therefore, the AAA 
rating is implied. MBS issued by the Government National Mortgage Association, with the label GNR, carry the explicit full faith and credit of 
the U.S. Government. Fannie Mae has been rated Aaa by Moody’s.
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Authority’s investments had the following ratings:

        2006
         Guaranteed
investment rating  Money US Gov’t US Gov’t Investment 
moody’s/S&P/Fitch  Markets Securities Agencies Contracts Total
     
Aaa/AAA/AAA     $ -           $ -           $ 105,147,662     $ -           $ 105,147,662  
Not rated                     68,400,000     68,400,000  
Credit risk not applicable    10,933,532     56,909,010                   67,842,542  
     
          $ 10,933,532     $ 56,909,010     $ 105,147,662     $ 68,400,000     $ 241,390,204  

 
        �00�
         Guaranteed
investment rating  Money US Gov’t US Gov’t Investment 
moody’s/S&P/Fitch  Markets Securities Agencies Contracts Total
     
Aaa/AAA/AAA       $ -              $ -          $ �1,�07,���      $ -          $   �1,�07,���  
Not rated                      7�,�77,��1     7�,�77,��1  
Credit risk not applicable    ��,�0�,�11     �0,�07,���                   ��,71�,�01  
     
          $ ��,�0�,�11     $ �0,�07,��0     $ �1,�07,���     $ 7�,�77,��1     $ ���,001,70�  

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Authority had the following portfolio of investments with credit exposure by investment type as a per-
centage of total investments:

       2006 �00�
U.S. government securities    24 % �0 %
U.S. government agencies:  
 FFCB      0.5     0  
 FHLB      7     �  
 FHLMC     17     �  
 FNMA   19     �0  
 GNMA   0.5     0  
Money market funds   4     1�  
Guaranteed investment contracts   28     �0  

Custodial Credit Risk—For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority will 
not be able to recover the value of its investment for collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. All money to be held by 
the Authority under Resolution No. 4800 is required to be deposited in one or more depositories in the name of the Authority. All money de-
posited under the provisions of Resolution No. 4800 with the Bond Fund Trustee and the Construction Fund Trustee is required to be held in 
trust and applied only in accordance with the provisions of Resolution No. 4800; money held by the Authority and deposited in any depository 
is required to be held and secured in the manner provided by Oklahoma law.
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Carrying Values—Cash and cash equivalents and current and noncurrent investments at December 31, 2006 and 2005, follows:

        2006  
       Current  Noncurrent Total
   
Cash and cash equivalents—general operating  $      7,177,412     $ -           $     7,177,412  
   
Investments:     
 General operating account    44,839,518            44,839,518  
 Restricted for bond service    40,479,164            40,479,164  
 Restricted for construction    30,882,894            30,882,894  
 Restricted for bond service reserve           96,121,388     96,121,388  
 Restricted for reserve and contingency           24,030,347     24,030,347  
 Restricted for other special purposes    329,290            329,290  
   
     Total investments    116,530,866     120,151,735     236,682,601  
   
     Total cash and investments    $ 123,708,278     $ 120,151,735     $ 243,860,013  

        �00�  
       Current  Noncurrent Total

Cash and cash equivalents—general operating    $    1�,���,0��    $ -           $    1�,���,0��  
   
Investments:   
 General operating account    �0,���,���            �0,���,���  
 Restricted for bond service    ��,711,�1�            ��,711,�1�  
 Restricted for construction    ��,1��,���            ��,1��,���  
 Restricted for bond service reserve           ��,1�1,���     ��,1�1,���  
 Restricted for reserve and contingency           ��,0�0,��7     ��,0�0,��7  
 Restricted for other special purposes    ���,1��            ���,1��  
   
     Total investments    1��,���,��0     1�0,1�1,7��     ���,���,���  
   
     Total cash and investments    $ 1�0,0��,�0�     $ 1�0,1�1,7��     $ �70,1�1,0�0  

Restricted cash deposits and restricted money market funds are included in investments on the Statement of Net Assets as these amounts are 
not available for operations.

Cash and investments at December 31, 2006, include the following:

                                    2006
           Other 
     General Board Bond  Bond Service Reserve and Special 
     Operations Designated Service Construction Reserve Contingency Purposes Total
        
Cash deposits—net   $   1,295,639 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 329,290 $     1,624,929
        
Money market funds   5,881,773            1,435,727     3,594,644     21,388                   10,933,532  
        
U.S. government                                                   
 securities   21,494,638     22,500,000     39,043,437     27,288,250     27,700,000     24,030,347            162,056,672  
        
Non-negotiable         
 certificates of deposit   844,880                                               844,880  
        
Guaranteed investment         
 agreements           68,400,000                   68,400,000  
        
Total cash and         
 investments   $ 29,516,930     $ 22,500,000     $ 40,479,164     $ 30,882,894     $ 96,121,388     $ 24,030,347     $ 329,290     $ 243,860,013  
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Cash and investments at December �1, �00�, include the following:

                                    �00�
           Other 
     General Board Bond  Bond Service Reserve and Special 
     Operations Designated Service Construction Reserve Contingency Purposes Total
        
Cash deposits—net   $   �,���,1�0 $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - $ ���,1��     $     �,7��,���  
        
Money market funds   10,��0,���      �,0��,0��     17,�7�,���     �1,���             ��,�0�,�11  
        
U.S. government         
 securities   ��,���,�0�     1�,000,000     ��,��7,7�0            �7,700,000     ��,0�0,��7            1�1,�1�,��1  
        
Non-negotiable         
 certificates of deposit   �,���,0��       �,1��,000                    1�,��7,0��  
        
Guaranteed investment         
 agreements                        7,�77,��1     ��,�00,000                   7�,�77,��1  
        
Total cash and         
 investments   $ ��,���,�7�     $ 1�,000,000     $ ��,711,�1�     $ ��,1��,���     $ ��,1�1,���     $ ��,0�0,��7     $ ���,1��     $ �70,1�1,0�0  

The balances in the investment accounts include Guaranteed Investment Agreements (“GIA”) entered into by the Authority to receive interest 
payments at a fixed rate for a designated time period based upon receipt of an agreed-upon investment amount deposited by the Authority. The 
restricted balances are the minimum amounts required to be maintained.

Unrealized holding gains and losses on U.S. government securities included in the reserve and contingency account are included in the general 
operating account as the balance in the reserve and contingency account is established at a stated amount through an allocation of general oper-
ating account investment balances.

Additional information concerning these GIAs and additional information relating to cash and investment restrictions follows:

Bond Service—On April 19, 1994, the Authority entered into a debt service forward purchase agreement with Lehman Brothers Special 
Financing, Inc. (“Lehman”). Under this agreement, the Authority received an advance payment of $22,925,000 in an exchange that granted 
Lehman the right to receive interest income earned on a GIA earning 7% until it matured on December 1, 2003, and the right to invest remain-
ing sinking fund payments required by the applicable bond indenture through June 1, 2013. The Authority recorded the $22,925,000 advance 
payment received in 1994 as a deferred credit and is amortizing the amount to income over the life of the agreement. The Authority deposits 
sinking fund payments pursuant to the bond repayment schedules in effect at the time of the agreement to avoid various prepayment penal-
ties. On December 31, the bond service fund in the accompanying balance sheet reflects the minimum restricted amount sufficient to pay seven 
months of principal and one month of interest due the following June 1.

Construction—The designated construction accounts include restricted money market funds and investments for two different purposes. (i) 
The 2002B construction accounts are for the acquisition, construction and equipment of Authority projects specified, primarily generation 
or metering and Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (“SCADA”) projects at the existing Coal-Fired Complex and the three hydro fa-
cilities. The projects are intended to restore or improve design capabilities, improve operational reliability, reduce power costs, prevent loss 
of revenues, or for safety or environmental purposes. Remittances during 2006 were utilized primarily for boiler upgrade and computerized 
monitoring equipment at the Coal-Fired Complex and SCADA upgrades at the Energy Control Center. Remittances during 2005 were used 
primarily for boiler upgrades and computerized monitoring equipment at the Coal-fired Complex, SCADA upgrades at the Energy Control 
Center and generator upgrades at Pensacola. The construction account included a GIA providing for an interest rate of 3.92% with an expi-
ration date of February 1, 2006. Upon the maturity of the GIA, the balance in the construction account was put into a money market fund. 
The agreement provides for remittances to Authority for permitted purposes from the construction account through 2006. (ii) The other con-
struction account includes $27.5 million, which had been legally restricted for capital projects at Fort Gibson Dam from 1989 until 2005. In 
November 1989, the Authority, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and the Southwestern Power Administration entered into a construction 
agreement for construction of additional generation units at Fort Gibson Dam. At that time, the Authority was required to put into an escrow 
account approximately $28 million for use in such construction. (These funds came from bond funds at that time.) No construction occurred 
and in November 2004, the Authority advised the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers of its desire to terminate the Authority’s sponsorship of the 
project. Formal termination of the project was complete during 2005, and pursuant to the Authority’s General Bond Resolution No. 4800, 
the construction trustee was notified to remove the Fort Gibson designation from the construction funds, making them available for the pur-
pose of completing other authorized capital projects.

Bond Service Reserve—The balance in the bond service reserve account includes a GIA, which essentially pays an interest rate of 5.78% 
through June 1, 2010, on $68,400,000 debt service reserve requirements relating to the 1993 bonds. The restricted amount in the accompanying 
balance sheet reflects the maximum aggregate debt service for all bonds outstanding and consists of the GIA together with other investments.
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Reserve and Contingency—The restricted amount in the accompanying balance sheet reflects 25% of the maximum aggregate debt service for 
all bonds outstanding which is the minimum amount restricted as working capital reserves.

Restricted for Other Special Purposes—The fish and wildlife mitigation fund was established in June 2003 as required by FERC. The 
Authority funded an initial deposit of $260,000 in 2003, and is required to make $100,000 annual contributions (adjusted for inflation) each 
year the Pensacola Dam license is in effect. Generally, the purpose of this fund is to support projects to protect and enhance fish and wildlife re-
sources at the direction of various groups external to the Authority. Expenditures of approximately $141,000 and $39,000 were made from the 
fund in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In addition to these restricted funds are two special funds (designated by the Authority’s Board of Directors in December 2004) which are 
unrestricted:

The Special Reserve and Contingency Fund I—This designated though unrestricted fund was established in December 2004 to reserve $2.5 mil-
lion annually for future use, if needed, for extraordinary maintenance, operational, and environmental expense. Total funding of $7.5 million 
from available unrestricted funds was board designated as of December 31, 2006.

The Special Reserve and Contingency Fund II—This designated though unrestricted fund was established in December 2004 to reserve $2 mil-
lion annually for future use, if needed, related to unforeseen risk, including, but not limited to, unscheduled outages, unexpected purchased 
power expense, and other extraordinary expense not covered by insurance proceeds. An initial amount of $11 million was formally designated 
in 2004, which combined with the $2 million designated in 2005 and the $2 million designated 2006 from available funds totaled $15 million 
as of December 31, 2006.

For purposes of computing gross realized gains and gross realized losses, cost is determined by specific identification. The calculation of realized 
gains is independent of the calculation of the net increase in the fair value of investments. Realized gains and losses on any investments that had 
been held for more than the current year may have been recognized as an increase or decrease in the fair value of investments reported in prior years.

Proceeds, gross realized gains and gross realized losses on sales of investment securities for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, were 
as follows:

      2006 �00�
  
Proceeds    $ 25,566,746     $ 1�,�10,��7  
Gross realized gains   217,164     11,��1  
Gross realized losses   (438,432)    (���,�7�) 

Gross realized gains and losses are included in income from nonutility operations in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Assets.

3. reCeivaBLeS
Accounts receivable is comprised at December 31, 2006 and 2005, of the following amounts:

       2006 �00�
  
Customers (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $�0,000)   $ 30,659,598     $ ��,��1,���  
Other      11,605,522     �,��1,���  
  

     Total   $ 42,265,120     $ ��,���,�0�  

In general, other accounts receivable include KAMO Power’s participation as a co owner of Authority Unit No. 2, reimbursable work for other 
entities, the current portion of receivables for aid of construction, and dock billings.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Authority had other noncurrent receivables for aid of construction, scheduled for collection through 2014, 
of $1,493,018 and $2,513,799, respectively, and noncurrent receivables for closure and post-closure costs related to the ash landfill at the Coal 
Fired Complex of $362,404 and $340,750 respectively.
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4. utiLity PLant
A summary of changes in utility plant for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, follows:

                                              2006   
      Balance   Balance
      December �1,   December �1,
      �00� Additions Retirements �00�
Capital assets—non-depreciable: 
 Land      $   26,881,621     $ -        $             (715)    $    26,880,906  
 Construction work in progress   4,948,252     15,578,029            20,526,281  
    
Total capital assets—nondepreciable   31,829,873     15,578,029     (715)    47,407,187  
    
Capital assets—depreciable:    
 Coal-fired plant Unit No. 1 (reduced by cost of common facilities 
  applicable to joint ownership of Unit No. � (see Note 7))   310,836,571     84,388     (330,702)    310,590,257  
 Coal-fired plant Unit No. � (see Note 7)   316,540,428     5,578,260     (2,496)    322,116,192  
 Hydraulic production plants   82,975,220     464,444     (1,086,113)    82,353,551  
 Transmission system   167,383,458     1,547,338     (822,854)    168,107,942  
 Other properties and production plant   47,751,190     3,261,575     (477,103)    50,535,662  
    
        925,���,867     10,936,005     (2,719,268)    933,703,604  
    
Less accumulated depreciation:    
 Coal-fired plant Unit No. 1   (208,184,417)    (9,025,523)    268,616     (216,941,324) 
 Coal-fired plant Unit No. �   (178,855,952)    (9,197,055)    1,296     (188,051,711) 
 Hydraulic production plants   (31,022,345)    (965,711)    1,077,642     (30,910,414) 
 Transmission system   (100,907,239)    (4,957,187)    858,939     (105,005,487) 
 Other properties and production plant   (38,941,521)    (1,760,227)    376,749     (40,324,999) 
    
      (557,911,474)    (25,905,703)    2,583,242     (581,233,935) 
    
Total capital assets—depreciable   367,575,393     (14,969,698)    (136,026)    352,469,669  
    
Net utility plant   $ 399,405,266     $        608,331     $   (136,741)    $ 399,876,856  
 
                                              �00�   
      Balance   Balance
      December �1,   December �1,
      �00� Additions Retirements �00�  
Capital assets—non-depreciable: 
 Land      $   ��,���,7��     $        ���,���     $         (�7,7�0)    $   ��,��1,��1  
 Construction work in progress   �,���,1��     (�77,���)           �,���,���  
    
     Total capital assets—nondepreciable   �1,���,��1     (1��,���)    (�7,7�0)    �1,���,�7�  
    
Capital assets—depreciable:    
 Coal-fired plant Unit No. 1 (reduced by cost of common facilities 
  applicable to joint ownership of Unit No. � (see Note 7))   �1�,��7,���     �0,���     (1,��1,���)    �10,���,�71  
 Coal-fired plant Unit No. � (see Note 7)   �1�,�7�,���     (�0�)    (��,���)    �1�,��0,���  
 Hydraulic production plants   ��,0�1,�11     ��7,��1     (��,���)    ��,�7�,��0  
 Transmission system   1��,1��,7��     1,�1�,���     (1��,�1�)    1�7,���,���  
 Other properties and production plant   ��,��0,7��     �,�10,0��     (���,�11)    �7,7�1,1�0  
    
      ���,���,���     �,���,7��     (�,���,���)    ���,���,��7  
    
Less accumulated depreciation:    
  Coal-fired plant Unit No. 1   (�00,��0,���)    (�,00�,���)    1,���,���     (�0�,1��,�17) 
  Coal-fired plant Unit No. �   (1��,707,���)    (�,177,7��)    ��,���     (17�,���,���) 
  Hydraulic production plants   (�0,0��,���)    (1,0��,�1�)    �7,���     (�1,0��,���) 
  Transmission system   (��,1��,��0)    (�,��1,���)    �0,�0�     (100,�07,���) 
  Other properties and production plant   (��,0�7,���)    (1,�1�,���)    �70,7�0     (��,��1,��1) 
    
        (���,�77,���)    (��,���,010)    �,�0�,17�     (��7,�11,�7�) 
    
     Total capital assets—depreciable   ��7,��0,�00     (�0,���,�1�)    (117,1�1)    ��7,�7�,���  
    
Net utility plant   $ �1�,�7�,7�1     $ (�0,���,�1�)    $       (1��,��1)    $ ���,�0�,���  
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The change in construction work in progress during 2006 and 2005, is presented on a net basis to avoid a duplication of additions and retire-
ments in the above tables.

The Authority had contractual commitments at December 31, 2006 of approximately $108,750,000 for equipment orders, supplies, construc-
tion, and maintenance contracts. Major projects include the Markham Ferry Hydroelectric Plant Upgrade for approximately $72,650,000, the 
Renovation of the Energy Control Center for approximately $9,500,000, the purchase of Microwave Radios and Supporting Equipment for approx-
imately $6,500,000, and the installation of Access Control and Surveillance System at all plant and office locations for approximately $2,500,000. 

5. CoSt to Be reCovered From Future revenueS
At December 31, 2006, the deferred regulatory asset consists of interest deferrals on the 2002B capital appreciation bonds maturing in 2014. A 
rollforward of costs to be recovered from future revenues follows:

      2006 �00�
  
Beginning balance   $ 1,922,740     $ �1,0��,���  
  
Amortization of costs to be recovered during year          (1�,���,1��) 
Deferral of �00�B bond issue costs   920,067     �1�,0�7  
  
Net amortized and deferred costs during year   920,067     (1�,1��,1��) 
  
Ending balance   $ 2,842,807     $   1,���,7�0  

6. BondS PayaBLe
A summary of changes in bonds payable for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, follows:

        2006  
       December �1,  December �1,
       �00� Retirements �00�

Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 1���—�-1/�% to �-7/�% maturing through �010   $ 344,440,000     $ (61,510,000)    $ 282,930,000  
   
Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 1���:   
 �.��% maturing in �011    81,690,000            81,690,000  
 �.�% maturing in �01�    91,715,000            91,715,000  
   
     Total    173,405,000     -           173,405,000  
   
Revenue Bonds, �00� A & B Series:   
 �% Refunding Series �00�A—maturing in �01�    86,160,000            86,160,000  
 �.1% Capital Appreciation Bonds—maturing in �01�    18,636,340            18,636,340  
   
     Total   104,796,340     -          104,796,340  
   
Total bonds payable    622,641,340     $ (61,510,000)    561,131,340  
   
Less current portion    (61,510,000)     (65,045,000) 
   
Long-term portion    561,131,340      496,086,340  
   
Add (deduct):   
 Unamortized debt premium    5,052,370      4,267,619  
 Unamortized debt discount    (6,192,992)     (4,883,875) 
 Unamortized loss on advance refunding    (21,618,561)     (16,062,267) 
   
Long-term bonds payable    $ 538,372,157      $ 479,407,817  
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        �00�  
       December �1,  December �1,
       �00� Retirements �00�
   
Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 1���— �-1/�% to �-7/�% maturing through �010    $ �0�,���,000     $ (��,�1�,000)    $ ���,��0,000  
   
Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 1���:   
 �.��% maturing in �011    �1,��0,000            �1,��0,000  
 �.�% maturing in �01�   �1,71�,000            �1,71�,000  
   
     Total  17�,�0�,000     -           17�,�0�,000  
   
Revenue Bonds, �00� A & B Series:   
 �% Refunding Series �00�A—maturing in �01�    ��,1�0,000            ��,1�0,000  
 �.1% Capital Appreciation Bonds—maturing in �01�    1�,���,��0            1�,���,��0  
   
     Total    10�,7��,��0     -           10�,7��,��0  
   
Total bonds payable    ��0,���,��0     $ (��,�1�,000)    ���,��1,��0  
   
Less current portion    (��,�1�,000)     (�1,�10,000) 
   
Long-term portion    ���,��1,��0      ��1,1�1,��0  
   
Add (deduct):   
 Unamortized debt premium    �,��7,1�1      �,0��,�70  
 Unamortized debt discount    (7,���,���)     (�,1��,���) 
 Unamortized loss on advance refunding    (�7,���,07�)     (�1,�1�,��1) 
   
Long-term bonds payable    $ ���,�1�,7�7      $ ���,�7�,1�7  
 

Oklahoma state statutes have authorized the Authority to issue revenue bonds from time to time not to exceed $1,410,000,000.

On May 30, 2002, the Authority issued $104,966,340 Revenue Bonds for the acquisition, construction and equipment of Authority Projects 
and to refund the remaining outstanding 1987 revenue bonds. This consisted of $86,330,000 Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2002A (the 
“2002A Bonds”) to refund $86,160,000 remaining of the 1987 Bonds. The 2002A refunding bonds were issued at a $4.5 million premium. The 
Authority recorded an initial accounting loss of approximately $371,000 in connection with this advance refunding, which was recorded as a de-
ferred asset and is being amortized to expense over the life of the new bonds. The difference between the present values of the old and new debt 
service payments was $2.0 million. The Authority realized all of the aggregate bond savings by decreasing the June 1, 2002, debt service pay-
ment. Additionally, the Authority also issued $18,636,340 Capital Appreciation Bonds, Revenue Bonds 2002B (the “2002B Bonds”) for the 
acquisition, construction and equipment of Authority projects. As previously noted in Note 5, the Authority will defer interest on the 2002B 
capital appreciation bonds until the bonds mature on June 1, 2014, at which time the deferred regulatory asset will be expensed.

In 1995, the Authority issued $173,405,000 Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 1995 (the “1995 Bonds”) to advance refund $171,755,000 of the 
outstanding 1987 Bonds. The Authority recorded an initial accounting loss of approximately $17.0 million in connection with this advance re-
funding, which was recorded as a deferred asset and is being amortized to expense over the life of the new bonds. The difference between the 
present values of the old and new debt service payments was $3.8 million. The Authority will realize $5.7 million in decreased aggregate debt 
service payments.

In 1993, the Authority issued $764,585,000 Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 1993 (the “1993 Bonds”) to advance refund $681,190,000 of the 
outstanding 1987 Bonds. The Authority recorded an initial accounting loss of approximately $113.7 million in connection with this advance re-
funding, which was recorded as a deferred asset and is being amortized to expense over the life of the new bonds. The difference between the 
present values of the old and new debt service payments is $18.2 million, including $6.1 million from an investment contract premium on the 
bond reserve funds, and the Authority will realize $20.1 million in decreased aggregate debt service payments.

Monies from the 2002A, 1995 and 1993 refunding bonds were placed in escrow for the payment of principal and interest on all the defeased 
bonds and were invested in obligations of the United States of America, which were deposited in irrevocable trusts with recourse against the 
trustee if funds are not available to pay principal, interest and any redemption premium on a timely basis. Since the revenue bonds that are de-
feased are no longer direct liabilities of the Authority, they are not reflected on the accompanying Statements of Net Assets.
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Defeased bonds of $50,850,000 and $54,140,000 were outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. At December 31, 2006, the defeased 
term bonds were a portion of the 1985 Refunding Series, the 1983B and 1982 Series, the 1977 Refunding Series, and the 1976 and 1969 Series.

The scheduled maturities of bonds payable at December 31, 2006, are as follows and reflect the scheduled payments to be remitted by the 
trustee to the bondholders:

years ending    Annual Semiannual Calendar
december 31    Principal Interest Year Total
   
�007        $    ��,0��,000     $   1�,�17,���         
               1�,�0�,7��     $   ��,���,�7�
�00�        ��,7�0,000     1�,�0�,7��         
               11,���,���     ��,�1�,1�1
�00�        7�,��0,000     11,���,���         
          �,���,1��     ��,���,�01
�010        7�,�1�,000     �,���,1��   
               7,���,1��     ��,07�,���
�011        �1,��0,000     7,���,1��   
          �,�7�,1��     ��,���,���
�01�–�01�     1��,�11,��0     ��,1�0,�7�     ��1,�7�,�1�

         $ ��1,1�1,��0     $ 1�7,���,���     $ ���,��0,���  

The Authority makes equal monthly sinking fund installments to the trustee from June through May of each year to meet the June 1 annual 
principal payment and June 1 and December 1 semiannual interest payments.

The following is a schedule of the minimum debt service sinking fund requirements for each year ending December 31:

years ending 
december 31 
 
�007      $   ��,���,�7�  
�00�        ��,�0�,07�  
�00�        ��,���,���  
�010        ��,7�0,0�1  
�011        ��,11�,01�  
�01�–�01�     170,�7�,���  
 
        $ ���,101,���  

To secure the bonds, the Authority has pledged revenues of the Authority. Resolution No. 4800 and supplemental bond resolutions spec-
ify multiple covenants made by the Authority to the Bond Fund Trustee and bondholders. Among the more significant requirements, the 
Authority has covenanted to charge adequate rates, operate and maintain the facilities and make any necessary repairs, renewals, replacements 
and improvements. System properties are not to be encumbered or sold or disposed of and additional parity bonds are not to be issued unless 
certain conditions are met. As of December 31, 2006, the Authority is in compliance with bond covenants.

In general, federal tax laws require the Authority to rebate to the U.S. Treasury any profit from investments that yield a higher rate than the tax-
exempt revenue bond proceeds. The Authority has accrued a liability for arbitrage rebate of approximately $241,000 and $244,000 at December 
31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which is included in accounts payable in the accompanying Statements of Net Assets. Increases in this obliga-
tion are recorded against interest income.

7. retirement PLanS, PoStretirement, and other emPLoyee BeneFitS
The Authority participated in five retirement plans during 2006 and 2005. The plans currently available to Authority personnel include three 
defined benefit plans and two defined contribution plans. A summary of significant data for each of the retirement plans and discussion of pos-
temployment and other employee benefits follows:

Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan
Plan Description—The Authority contributes to the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan (the “OPERS Plan”), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer public employee defined benefit retirement plan administered by the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (“OPERS”), 
a component unit of the State of Oklahoma (the “State”). The OPERS Plan, a defined benefit plan, provides retirement, disability and death 
benefits to its members and beneficiaries, primarily state, county and local agency employees. The benefits provided are established and may be 
amended by the legislature of the State. Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 901 through 943, as amended, assigns the authority for 
management and operation of the OPERS Plan to the Board of Trustees of the OPERS.
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OPERS issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
for OPERS. That annual report may be obtained by writing to OPERS, PO Box 53007, Oklahoma City, OK 73152-3007, or by calling 
1-800-733-9008.

Funding Policy—OPERS members and the Authority are required to contribute to the OPERS Plan at a rate set by statute. Contribution rates 
are established and may be amended by the legislature of the State. Each member participates based on gross salary earned (excluding overtime). 
As state employees, GRDA employees contribute 3.0% of the first $25,000 of base salary and 3.5% of base salary above $25,000. The Authority 
contributed 10% of total base salary through June 30, 2005, 11.5 % through June 30, 2006, and 12.5% thereafter.

Effective January 1, 2004, members participating in OPERS can make an irrevocable election to increase their retirement factor by 25%, from 2.0 to 2.5 
for each year of participating service earned after the effective date by contributing an additional 2.91% of the first $25,000 of base salary and 3.41% on 
base salary above $25,000. This is referred to as the “step-up” program. The election can be made at enrollment or at any time while an active participat-
ing member, but once an irrevocable, “step-up” election is made it is binding on all future OPERS participation even if the member changes jobs or 
has a break in service. The Authority makes no additional contributions if an election to “step-up” is made, and the agency rate remains at 12.5%.

The Authority made the required contributions of approximately $3,322,000, $2,727,000, and $2,300,000 for the years ended December 31 
2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement Plan
Plan Description—Legislation passed during 2003 mandates that any lake patrolmen and dispatchers hired after August 29, 2003, shall partic-
ipate as members of the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement Plan (the “OLERS Plan”), a single-employer public employee defined benefit 
retirement plan administered by the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System (“OLERS”), a component unit of the State. The OLERS 
Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to its members and beneficiaries, primarily state employees providing law enforcement. 
The benefits provided are established and may be amended by the legislature of the State. Three GRDA patrolmen elected to transfer from 
the OPERS Plan to the OLERS plan under Title 47 Section 2 315 which provided that Authority lake patrolmen and dispatchers as of June 
30, 2003, could make an irrevocable written election by January 1, 2004, to either pay the difference between the amount transferred between 
the plans or receive eligible prorated service credit as defined in statute. Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 2 300 through 2 303, as 
amended, assigns the authority for management and operation of the OLERS Plan to the OLERS Board.

The System issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for 
OLERS. That annual report may be obtained by writing to OLERS, 4545 N. Lincoln Blvd, Suite 257, Oklahoma City, OK 73105 3414 or by 
calling 1 877 213 0856.

Funding Policy—System members and the Authority are required to contribute to the OLERS Plan at a rate set by statute. These are established 
and may be amended by the legislature of the State. Each member participates based on gross salary earned (excluding overtime). GRDA pa-
trolmen and dispatchers participating in the OLERS Plan contribute 8.0%, and the Authority contributes 10% of total base salary.

Participation in the OLERS plan was effective January 1, 2004. The required contribution by the Authority totaled $22,241, $18,567, and 
$11,987 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Oklahoma State Employees Deferred Compensation Plan
Plan Description—Employees of the Authority may also participate in the Oklahoma State Employees Deferred Compensation Plan (the 
“State Plan”), a voluntary deferred compensation plan administered by OPERS. The State Plan is a defined contribution plan available to all 
Authority employees, which permits participants to defer receipt of a portion of their salary until future years under Section 457 of the Internal 
Revenue Code. The minimum amount allowable to be deferred under the State Plan is $25 per month. Under state law, each employee is eligi-
ble to receive a $25 monthly matching contribution from the Authority to be deposited in a 401(a) retirement account. Employee contributions 
to the Plan totaled approximately $419,000, $383,000, and $335,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. 
The Authority paid matching contributions and administrative fees of approximately $134,000, $130,000, and $126,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

GRDA Employees Retirement Plan
Plan Description—Employees of the Authority are also eligible to participate in the GRDA Employees Retirement Plan (the “GRDA Plan”), a vol-
untary deferred compensation plan administered by Nationwide Retirement Solutions and provided for under Section 457 of the Internal Revenue 
Code. The GRDA Plan is a defined contribution plan available to all Authority employees, which permits participants to defer receipt of a portion 
of their salary until future years. The Authority does not make any matching contributions to this plan. Employee contributions to the GRDA Plan 
totaled approximately $570,000, $543,000, and $551,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Contributions to either or both the State Plan and GRDA Plan in aggregate may not exceed 25% of adjusted gross salary or $15,000 for the 
year 2006, whichever is less, except under a “catch up” provision that allows certain eligible employees to contribute up to a certain amount 
annually, which was $30,000 for the year 2006, during the three years preceding normal retirement age. An additional provision allows for em-
ployees over the age of 50 to defer an additional $5,000 during the plan year. Employees are not allowed to participate in both the “over 50” 
provision and the “catch up” provision during the same plan year. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, re-
tirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.
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Postemployment Benefits—Beginning in 2003, revisions to Title 82 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Section 864.1 authorized the Authority to pay 
up to $60 per month of eligible employee-only health insurance premiums for each Authority retiree. Expenses for postretirement health care 
benefits are recognized as premiums are due. At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, there were 148, 140, and 130 retirees eligible for such ben-
efits, respectively. Legislation passed during 2005 removed the $60 limitation. At the December 2005 board meeting, the Authority’s directors 
authorized the Authority to increase the amount to $105 per month for eligible retiree premiums effective January 1, 2006. Under this pro-
gram, the Authority paid $175,030, $98,817, and $92,285 for retiree’s health insurance premiums in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Other Employee Benefits—The Authority has accrued a liability for annual and compensated leave and related payroll taxes earned of approx-
imately $3,648,000 and $3,329,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
in the accompanying financial statements.

8. other reLated-Party tranSaCtionS
The primary organizations considered related parties are those municipal, industrial, electric cooperative and other governmental organizations 
or lake area organizations that have representatives serving on the Authority’s Board of Directors. The primary transactions in the ordinary 
course of business with these related parties, except for various transactions with KAMO which are described elsewhere in the notes to finan-
cial statements, include sales of electrical power and transmission and memberships in related trade associations, or organizations or tourism 
and economic development activities associated with the management of the lakes, including commercial and private dock permit fees.

9. CommitmentS and ContinGenCieS
In the normal course of business, the Authority makes and receives commitments for purchases of coal and other materials and supplies in-
ventory. In addition, in the normal course of business the Authority enters into agreements which commit the Authority to provide varying 
amounts of electric power to its customers. Management of the Authority does not believe the honoring of these commitments will have any 
material adverse effect on the Authority.

The Authority had contractual commitments at December 31, 2006, for long-term coal and freight purchases under contracts through 2011 
with estimated minimum obligations. The minimum obligations below is based on the Authority’s contract rates and represents management’s 
best estimate of future expenditures under long-term arrangements.

years ending 
december 31    Amount
 
�007        $   7�,0�0,000  
�00�        �0,��0,000  
�00�        �7,7�0,000  
�010        ��,000,000  
�011        ��,��0,000  
 
Total        $ ���,��0,000  

The Authority had contractual commitments as of December 31, 2006, for railcar leases with minimum obligations of approximately 
$7,120,000 through the year 2011.

At December 31, 2006, the Authority was a defendant in six claims related to alleged flooding of property upstream from Grand Lake in the early 
1990s. The Plaintiffs in general are seeking damages in excess of $10,000,000 as a result of flooding which were allegedly caused by the operation 
of the Authority’s Pensacola Dam or for which the operation of the Pensacola Dam contributed to the extent and/or duration of the flooding.

The issue of liability in these claims has been determined. The only remaining issue for each claim is the amount of damages to which the claim-
ants are entitled. An additional 88 claims were resolved in 2005 and, in January 2006, the Authority paid approximately $680,000 in full and 
final settlement of the 88 claims.

Prior to March 2005, it was expected that the Authority’s primary liability insurer would cover all damages incurred by the Authority from these 
flooding cases. In March 2005, however, the insurance company filed an action seeking to limit its obligations under the insurance policies issued to 
the Authority. This action was filed by the insurance company in response to the Authority demand for coverage and indemnity with regard to the 
claims discussed in the preceding paragraph. The Authority’s position is that the insurance company remains responsible for the flooding claims.

The Authority is also the defendant in another case which involves approximately 50 landowners. The individuals are claiming a constitutional 
taking due to flooding. This case has been held in abeyance pending the outcome of the previous flooding case described above. Based upon 
facts and information presently available, management of the Authority believes that it is reasonably probable that GRDA will incur a material 
future financial loss in the settlement or other resolution of these flood related cases. As a result, a liability of $4,000,000 has been recorded re-
lating to this contingency, which is included in accounts payable in the accompanying financial statements.
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The Authority is a self-supporting agency of the State of Oklahoma that receives no state appropriations and is exempt from many laws, which 
apply generally to all state agencies. Historically, due to these exemptions, the Authority also considered itself exempt from other state laws. In 
2004, management initiated a legal review of the Authority’s compliance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations and contracts. As a 
result of the legal review, management has determined that compliance is necessary with certain provisions of state law and in 2005, began im-
plementing policies and administrative rules to bring the Authority into compliance. In 2006, the Authority promulgated administrative rules 
pursuant to the Oklahoma Administrative Procedures Act. These rules have the force and effect of law. The Oklahoma Administrative Code 
now contains several chapters of administrative rules for the Authority. The administrative rules cover the following topics: Operations and 
Procedures; Surplus Property Disposal; Purchasing Policy Requirements; Method for Obtaining a License to Encroach from the Authority; 
Aircraft Travel Log Rules; and Lake Rules.

Management does not believe any remaining noncompliance with laws, regulations and contracts will have a material effect on the Authority’s 
financial statements or other material adverse effects on the Authority.

The Authority is also engaged in various other litigation matters incidental to the conduct of its business, the ultimate outcome of which cannot 
be predicted by management of the Authority and the Authority’s legal counsel.

10. FLyaSh LandFiLL CLoSure and PoStCLoSure CoStS
The Authority maintains a flyash landfill in Chouteau, Oklahoma. The Authority accounts for this flyash landfill in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs.

State Regulations will require the Authority to place a final cover on the flyash site when it discontinues its depositing of flyash and to perform 
certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for eight years after closure. Although closure costs occur as the landfill is used, and in 
a manner consistent with the closure plan, postclosure costs will be paid near or after the date of discontinuance of use of the landfill. Statement 
No. 18 requires proprietary funds to report a portion of these costs as an operating expense in each period based on capacity and utilization. 
The amount recorded as a liability for the closure and postclosure costs at December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, was $1,019,928 and 
$958,987, respectively, which represents 78% and 73% of the total estimated closure and postclosure costs. The Authority will recognize the re-
maining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of approximately $292,000 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These estimated 
closure amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in 2006. Actual costs may be higher due to infla-
tion, changes in technology, or changes in regulation. 

11. riSK manaGement
The Authority is exposed to a variety of losses and has purchased commercial insurance to cover these risks, subject to various coverage limits 
and exclusions. Resolution No. 4800 requires that, in each case where it is obtainable and at a reasonable rate and terms, facilities be insured, li-
ability insurance be maintained, and officers and employees be bonded.

In general, property coverage, such as aircraft, auto, equipment, watercraft, boiler and machinery, flooding, earthquake, hazardous mate-
rial cleanup, expediting, etc. is purchased through the State of Oklahoma. Workers’ compensation insurance is also purchased from Comp 
Source Oklahoma, the State’s insurance fund. The Authority has also insured for director and officer liability through the State of Oklahoma. 
Additional coverage is purchased from private carriers for general, excess public, and umbrella liability, bonding, and contractors’ equipment. 
The Authority added endorsements for certified “acts of terrorism” as defined in the Federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 to the gen-
eral liability and excess public liability policies. Settled claims resulting from the identified risks, except for the flooding litigation discussed in 
Note 10, have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

The Authority enters into contracts to buy, sell and exchange electric power with other energy companies. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the 
Authority’s liability related to these contracts approximated $1,938,000 and $2,090,000, respectively, and is included in accounts payable and 
accrued expenses in the accompanying Statements of Net Assets. These contracts are derivative instruments, which are accounted for as a nor-
mal purchase in accordance with SFAS No. 133.

In addition, the Authority is subject to generation supply and market price risks, which are continually evaluated as to level of risk and how to 
best mitigate exposure to loss. Concentration of revenues from a single external customer also increases credit and market concentration risks. 
In 2006 and 2005, the Authority had two customers that each accounted for more than 10% of the Authority’s operating revenues for the year. 
Sales to the City of Coffeyville totaled $29.5 million and $28.8 million for the years 2006 and 2005, respectively. Sales to Northeast Electric 
Cooperative totaled $30.0 million and $24.4 million for the year 2006 and 2005, respectively.



��  |  GRDA • 2006 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

12. Fair vaLue inFormation
The following disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments is made in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 107, 
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the Authority, using available 
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is necessarily required in interpreting mar-
ket data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the 
Authority could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a 
material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities—The carrying amounts of these items are 
a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

Investments—Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying Statements of Net Assets based on quoted market prices for the 
investments, except for guaranteed investment agreements which are carried at cost as it is not practicable to estimate the fair value of these in-
struments since they are contracts between specific parties and similar instruments are not traded.

Long-Term Debt—The fair value of long-term debt is approximately $598 million and $765 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respec-
tively, based on interest rates that are currently available to the Authority for issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities. All 
bonds currently held by the Authority are not redeemable prior to their stated maturities.

The fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent information available to management as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. 
Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts, such amounts have not been 
comprehensively revalued for purposes of these financial statements since that date, and current estimates of fair value may differ significantly 
from the amounts presented herein.

13. SuBSeQuent event
In January 2007, an ice storm caused extensive damage across several counties in Oklahoma, and significantly affected areas were declared federal 
disaster areas. The GRDA sustained approximately $10 million dollars of damage to lines and substations during the storm and is working with the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency to obtain reimbursement of allowable storm damage costs. 
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Unaudited

Largest 20 Customers by Net Revenues - 2006 
 	
 Customer Name    Customer Classification Net Revenue Percentage

Northeast Oklahoma Electric Cooperative Cooperative 11 %

City of Coffeyville, Kansas Municipal 11 

Stillwater Utilities Authority Municipal �

Paragould, Arkansas, Light and Water Commission Off-System Firm 7

Board of Public Utilities, Springfield, Missouri Off-System Firm �

Claremore Public Works Authority Municipal �

Kansas Municipal Energy Agency Off-System Firm �

Poplar Bluff, Missouri, City Light and Water Off-System Firm �

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas Municipal �

City of Miami     Municipal �

Tahlequah Public Works Authority Municipal �

Sallisaw Municipal Authority Municipal �

Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority Other Contractual Agreement �

Air Products Manufacturing Corporation Industrial � 

Solae, LLC      Industrial �

City of Pryor Creek Municipal Utility Board Municipal �

Wagoner Public Works Authority Municipal �

Stilwell Area Development Authority Off-System Firm �

City of Cushing    Municipal 1

American Castings   Industrial 1

 Net Revenues as a Percentage of Sales of Power  �7 %

Largest 20 Customers by Net Revenues - 10 Years Ago 1996 
 	
 Customer Name    Customer Classification Net Revenue  Percentage

KAMO Power     Cooperative �0 %

Northeast Oklahoma Electric Cooperative Cooperative � 

Stillwater Utilities Authority Municipal 7 

Board of Public Utilities, Springfield, Missouri Off-System Firm � 

Claremore Public Works Authority Municipal � 

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas Municipal � 

Paragould, Arkansas, Light and Water Commission Off-System Firm � 

City of Miami     Municipal � 

Tahlequah Public Works Authority Municipal � 

Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority Other Contractual Agreement � 

Poplar Bluff, Missouri, City Light and Water Off-System Firm � 

Air Products of Oklahoma, Inc. Industrial � 

Sallisaw Municipal Authority Municipal � 

WilGro Fertilizer, plant owned by Pryor Plant Chemical Co. Industrial � 

Grede Foundries, plant owned by American Castings, LLC Industrial � 

Wagoner Public Works Authority Municipal � 

City of Pryor Creek Municipal Utility Board Municipal � 

Protein Technologies, Inc., currently Solae, LLC Industrial � 

City of Cushing    Municipal 1 

City of Stilwell    Municipal 1 

 Net Revenues as a Percentage of Sales of Power  �1 %

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority
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Unaudited

Financial Highlights

      2006 �00� �00� �00� �00�

net aSSetS    

assets:

 Current Assets  $ 224,355,412 $ �1�,��7,��� $ 1��,1��,�77 $ 1��,7��,��� $ 1��,7��,��7

 Net Utility Plant  399,876,856 ���,�0�,��� �1�,�7�,7�1 ��7,�1�,��� ���,71�,���

 Restricted Investments  120,151,735 1�0,1�1,7�� 1�0,�7�,��� 1��,710,��1 1�0,�7�,01�

 Other Noncurrent Assets  7,693,303 �,�71,��1 ��,0��,�00 ��,���,��� 7�,��7,���

    Total Assets  752,077,036 7�7,���,0�� 7��,���,��0 7��,1��,01� ���,�17,���

     

Liabilities:

 Current Liabilities  98,694,983 ��,���,0�0 77,��1,��� 7�,07�,��1 7�,171,�00

 Noncurrent Liabilities  494,392,661 ���,��0,��1 �0�,���,1�1 ���,�7�,��7 70�,�01,���

    Total Liabilities  593,087,644 ���,0��,��1 ���,���,��� 7��,���,��� 77�,�7�,���

net assets:
 Invested in Capital Assets - net   666,401 (�0,���,0��) (�0,���,7��) (��,�0�,�7�) (�7,�1�,��1)
 Restricted for:
  Debt Service   40,479,164 ��,711,�1� �7,0��,��� ��,70�,��� ��,��0,���
  Construction           -     �7,�00,000 �7,�00,000 �7,�00,000 �7,�00,000
  Other Special Purposes  329,290 ���,1�� �7�,1�0 ��0,000          -

 Unrestricted     117,514,537 11�,���,�7� ��,0��,�1� 7�,���,��� 7�,���,���

    Total Net Assets  158,989,392 $ 10�,���,7�� $  ��,0��,��� $  �1,7��,0�� $   �7,���,�10

      2006 �00� �00� �00� �00�

ChanGe in net aSSetS
operating revenues:     

 Sales of power  $ 276,823,553 $ �70,1��,0�� $ �11,��1,1�� $ 1��,011,0�� $ 17�,10�,�0�

 Other operating revenues  11,099,095 �,��7,��7 1�,��1,��� �,�10,�7� �,���,��7

    Total Operating Revenues  287,922,648 �7�,�0�,��� ��7,00�,7�� �0�,��1,�0� 1�7,���,0�0

operating expenses:     

 Fuel      (65,511,589) (�1,���,��0) (��,���,01�) (�0,��1,���) (��,���,�77)  

 Purchased power - net  (57,142,790) (�7,��0,��1) (1�,���,���) (7,77�,���) (7,11�,�11)

 Depreciation   (25,905,702) (��,���,010) (��,�7�,���) (��,���,��7) (��,��0,�07) 

 Maintenance   (24,090,585) (1�,���,1��) (�1,���,17�) (1�,0��,��1) (17,1�1,��0)    

 Operation    (18,408,195) (1�,�0�,���) (1�,���,���) (1�,7��,��0) (1�,��7,��7)    

 Administrative and general  (16,544,857) (�0,���,���) (1�,���,���) (1�,�0�,���) (1�,��0,7��) 

    Total Operating Expenses  (207,603,718) (1��,���,�1�) (1��,�7�,�01) (1��,0��,���) (1�0,77�,�01)

Operating Income  80,318,930 ��,�1�,�77 �0,0��,1�� ��,1��,��7 ��,77�,���

Other Non-Operating Revenues  12,964,864 10,���,��� �,���,��� �,�0�,��� 1�,�7�,0��

Interest and Bond-Related  

 Amortizations  (39,844,233) (��,1��,���) (�7,��7,��7) (�1,1�7,���) (��,711,���)

Increase (Decrease) in Costs

 to Be Recovered  920,067 (1�,1��,1��) (��,���,���) (��,�1�,7��) (1�,�77,701)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets  $   54,359,628 $   ��,�7�,�1� $    1�,���,7�� $      �,��0,��� $   (1,1��,���)

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority



2006 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report • GRDA  |  �1

Unaudited

 �001 �000 1��� 1��� 1��7

 $ 1�1,���,�00  $ 1��,���,��� $ 1��,�7�,1�� $ 107,0��,��� $ 110,1�7,���

 ���,���,���  �7�,�17,1�0 ��0,���,�1� �0�,���,��7 ���,�70,10�

           (Detail for preceding years is not available. Total Noncurrent Assets below:)

 ���,0�1,007  ���,�1�,��0 �7�,7��,�01 ���,��1,��� ��7,���,���

 ��0,�0�,171  �7�,���,��� �1�,���,��1 ���,���,��1 ���,�00,��1

 7�,���,�0�  ��,1��,777 ��,�0�,07� ��,�0�,7�� ��,��1,���

 7��,1��,701  7��,107,��� �0�,1��,��0 ���,7��,��� �70,��0,0�7

 �0�,11�,007  ��1,��1,��� �7�,���,��� ���,0��,�0� ���,0�1,���

          (Detail for preceding years is not available.)

 $    ��,���,1��  $    ��,��1,�00 $   �0,���,�7� $    �0,�7�,��7 $    ��,�1�,�7�

 �001 �000 1��� 1��� 1��7 

 $ 1��,��7,���  $ 1��,00�,��1 $ 17�,1��,1�� $ 1��,0�7,��� $ 17�,7��,0��

 7,���,1��  �,1�1,��7 �,���,17� 1,���,1�� ��1,�77

 1��,7�1,��1  �00,1��,10� 177,���,��� �00,�1�,7�� 177,���,��1

 
    

 (��,�00,1��) (��,���,��1) (��,�7�,��1) (��,��1,�1�) (��,���,���)

 (�,���,1��) (1�,0��,7��) (�,���,��0) (��,���,���) (�,���,�1�)

 (��,1��,�7�)  (��,��7,���) (��,7��,70�) (��,���,�1�) (��,01�,���)

 (1�,��0,���)  (1�,���,�71) (1�,��7,�7�) (1�,�70,��7) (11,�0�,�70)

 (1�,���,��7)    (1�,11�,�7�) (1�,���,��7) (11,7��,70�) (�,���,��0)

 (10,�0�,���)  (10,���,�71) (11,���,�00) (10,7�0,1��) (10,7��,���)

 (1��,�07,�1�) (1�1,���,71�) (11�,�77,���) (1��,��0,���) (11�,0��,���)

 ��,���,�7�  ��,�7�,��� �0,�7�,��� ��,1��,�11 ��,��0,��7

 1�,10�,��0  1�,�17,7�� 11,��1,10� 1�,���,��7 1�,���,���

 (�7,���,���)  (�1,01�,���) (��,���,1��) (��,7��,���) (��,�71,���)

 (1�,�1�,���)  (11,11�,��7) (�,0��,���) (�,���,���) (�,�0�,1��)

 $      �,���,���  $      �,���,��7 $           (��,�7�) $      7,1��,�7� $      �,��7,1�0
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Rate History
      2006 �00� �00� �00� �00�

electric Service rates:     
 Capacity Charges per kW:     
  Wholesale - Distribution Primary $    10.09  $    10.0�  $   10.0�  $   �.��  $   �.�� 
  Wholesale - Transmission 9.32  �.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� 
  Wholesale - Generation Bus 8.76  �.7�  �.7�  �.��  �.�� 
  Industrial - Distribution, Schedule LGS 10.40  10.�0  10.�0   (LGS became effective in 2004) 
  Industrial - Distribution, Schedule GS 9.99  �.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� 
  Industrial - Distribution Primary, Schedule LGS 10.19  10.1�  10.1�                                 (LGS became effective in 2004) 
  Industrial - Distribution Primary, Schedule GS 9.23  �.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� 
  Industrial - Transmission 9.42  �.��  �.��   (Rate became effective in 2004) 
     
 energy Charges per kWh:     
  Wholesale - Distribution Primary 0.0210  0.01�7�  0.01�7�  0.017��  0.017�� 
  Wholesale - Transmission 0.0210  0.01�7�  0.01�7�  0.017��  0.017�� 
  Wholesale - Generation Bus 0.0210  0.01�70  0.01�70  0.017��  0.017�� 
  Industrial - Distribution, Schedule LGS 0.0214  0.0�1�  0.0�1�   (LGS became effective in 2004) 
  Industrial - Distribution, Schedule GS 0.0210  0.01�7�  0.01�7�  0.017��  0.017�� 
  Industrial - Distribution Primary, Schedule LGS 0.0210  0.0�10  0.0�10   (LGS became effective in 2004) 
  Industrial - Distribution Primary, Schedule GS 0.0210  0.01�7�  0.01�7�  0.017��  0.017�� 
  Industrial - Transmission 0.0210  0.0�10  0.0�10   (Rate became effective in 2004) 
  Commercial 0.06442  0.0����  0.0����  0.0�1��  0.0�1�� 
     
 Power Cost adjustment per kWh:     
  PCA - 1st half of Year 0.00288 0.00�71 -0.00��10 -0.00���0 -0.00�1�0
  PCA - �nd half of Year 0.00966 0.0017� -0.000�70 -0.000�10 -0.00���0
  PCA - �th Quarter (�001 only)       
     
Water rates: per thousand gallons     
 Grand Lake   $      0.0150  $      0.01�0  $      0.01�0  $   0.01�0  $  0.01�0 
 Lake hudson 0.0100  0.0100  0.0100  0.0100  0.0100 
 Fort Gibson Lake 0.0040  0.00�0  0.00�0  0.00�0  0.00�0 
 Wr holway reservoir 0.0216  0.0�1�  0.0�1�  0.0�1�  0.0�1� 
 river Pump Station 0.0850  0.0��0  0.0�00  0.0�00  0.0��0    
 
dock Permit rates:     
 Private docks:     
     Docks less than 1100 sq. feet:     
   Base charge, including first slip $ 100.00  $ 100.00  $ ��.00 $ ��.00  $ ��.00 
   Per each additional slip 25.00  ��.00  1�.00  1�.00  1�.00 
    Docks greater than 1100 sq. feet:     
   Base charge 100.00  100.00  -  - -
   Per square foot over 1100 sq. feet 0.06  0.0�  0.0��  0.0��  0.0�� 
     
 Commercial docks:     
  Minimum charge 200.00  �00.00  �00.00 �0.00 �0.00   
  Per slip   25.00  ��.00  ��.00   -  - 
  Per square foot 0.06  0.0�  0.0�  0.0��  0.0��

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority

Revenue Bonds Outstanding and Limits 
      2006 �00� �00� �00� �00�

Long Term Portion  $   496,086,340 $ ��1,1�1,��0 $ ���,��1,��0 $ ��0,���,��0 $  7��,��1,��0

  

Current Portion   65,045,000 �1,�10,000 ��,�1�,000 ��,���,000   ��,1�0,000

Total Outstanding Bonds  $ 561,131,340 $ ���,��1,��0 $ ��0,���,��0 $  7��,��1,��0 $ 7��,�71,��0

Bond Indebtedness Limit  1,410,000,000 1,�10,000,000 1,�10,000,000 1,�10,000,000 1,�10,000,000

Bond Indebtedness Margin  848,868,660 7�7,���,��0 7��,1��,��0 �7�,�7�,��0 ��0,���,��0

Margin as a percentage of Limit  60.2 % ��.� % �1.7 % �7.� % ��.0 %

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority
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Unaudited

 �001 �000  1��� 1��� 1��7 

   
 $   �.��  $   �.��  $   �.��  $   �.��  $   �.�� 
 �.��  �.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� 
 �.��  �.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� 
    
 �.��  �.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� 
    
 �.��  �.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� 
    

    
 0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017�� 
 0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017�� 
 0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017�� 
    
 0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017�� 
    
 0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017��  0.017�� 
    
 0.0�1��  0.0�1��  0.0�1��  0.0�1��  0.0�1�� 
    
    
 0.001��0 -0.00��70 -0.000�70 -0.00�0�0 -0.00�000
 0.001100 -0.00�010 -0.00�0�� -0.0011�0 -0.00�7�0
 -0.00�000    
     
    
 $   0.01�0  $   0.01�0  $   0.01�0  $   0.01�0  $   0.01�0 
 0.0100  0.0100  0.0100  0.0100  0.0100 
 0.00�0  0.00�0  0.00�0  0.00�0  0.00�0 
 0.0�1�  0.0�1�  0.0�1�  0.0�1�  0.0�1� 
 0.0��0  0.0��0  0.0�00  0.0�00  0.0�00 
    
 

   
 $ ��.00  $ ��.00  $ ��.00 $ ��.00  $ ��.00 
 1�.00  1�.00  1�.00  1�.00  1�.00 
    
 - - - - -
 0.0��  0.0��  0.0��  0.0��  0.0�� 

  �0.00 �0.00 �0.00 �0.00 �0.00
  -  -  -  - -
 0.0��  0.0��  0.0��  0.0��  0.0�� 

 �001 �000  1��� 1��� 1��7 
 

 $    770,���,000 $   ��1,0��,000  $   ���,�1�,000 $   �1�,��0,000 $    ���,���,000

 �0,1�0,000 �7,��0,000  ��,11�,000 ��,���,000 �0,���,000

 $    ��1,0��,000  $   ���,�1�,000 $   �1�,��0,000 $    ���,���,000 $ ��7,��0,000

 1,�10,000,000 1,�10,000,000 1,�10,000,000 1,�10,000,000 1,�10,000,000

 ���,���,000 ��1,���,000 ���,��0,000 ���,�0�,000 �1�,��0,000

 �1.� % ��.� % ��.� % ��.� % ��.� %

The Authority’s bond issuance 
limit of $1,410,000,000 is 
established per Oklahoma 
statute. While long interpreted 
as such, legislation has been 
proposed, which, if enacted, 
will clarify that the limitation 
relates to the amount of bonds 
outstanding at any time.
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Debt Service Coverage
 

      2006 �00� �00� �00� �00�
 

Operating Revenues  $ 287,922,648 $ �7�,�0�,��� $ ��7,00�,7�� $ �0�,��1,�11 $ 1�7,���,0�0

Over/(Under) Recovered Fuel Cost  (5,816,468) (11,7��,�1�) (1,7��,���) �,0��,��� (�,0��,1��)

Revenues Available for Debt Service  282,106,180 ��7,���,�7� ���,���,�1� �07,���,0�� 1�1,���,��7

Operating Expenses, excluding

 depreciation   (181,698,016) (1��,���,�0�) (1�1,���,1��) (10�,��0,���) (10�,���,���)

Other Income, excluding noncash 

 amortizations, market adjustments, 

  and other excluded interest  11,464,742 10,�1�,1�� �,���,�7� �,���,��� 10,1��,1��

Other Available Funds  -   -   -    -  �,1��,000

Net Revenue Available for 

 Debt Service   $ 111,872,906 $ 11�,��1,��� $ 11�,�10,��� $ 107,���,��� $ ��,�1�,7��

Sinking Fund Requirements:

 Principal    63,572,082 �0,1�7,0�� �7,110,��� ��,���,7�0 ��,0�7,�00

 Interest     31,908,647 ��,���,�0� ��,�1�,1�� �0,7�0,7�1 ��,��0,���

Debt Service Requirements  $   95,480,729 $   ��,��1,��� $   ��,���,��� $   ��,���,��1 $   ��,���,0��

 

 Net Revenues Available for 

  Capital Improvements and 

   Other Purposes  $  16,392,177 $   1�,7��,77� $   17,1��,�7� $    11,��7,11� $     (7,0��,�10)

Debt Service Coverage  1.17 1.�0 1.1� 1.1� .��

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority

Cash and Investment Balances
      2006 �00� �00� �00� �00�

General Operating   $    29,516,930 $   ��,���,�7� $   ��,��0,��1 $   �7,7�0,��� $   ��,���,1��

  

Board Designated  22,500,000 1�,000,000 1�,�00,000 -  -

Restricted for:     

 Bond Service   40,479,164 ��,711,�1� �7,0��,��� ��,70�,��� ��,��0,���  

 Construction   30,882,894 ��,1��,��� ��,���,��� ��,01�,��0 ��,���,��1

 Bond Service Reserve  96,121,388 ��,1�1,��� ��,1�1,��� ��,1�1,��� ��,1�1,���

 Reserve and Contingency  24,030,347 ��,0�0,��7 ��,0�0,��7 ��,0�0,��7 ��,0�0,��7 

 Other Special Purposes  329,290 ���,1�� �7�,1�0 ��0,000   -

Total Cash and Investments  $ 243,860,013 $ �70,1�1,0�0 $ ���,110,�1� $ ���,���,��7 $ ���,���,���

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority
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Unaudited

 �001 �000  1��� 1��� 1��7 

 $ 1��,7�1,��1  $ �00,1��,10�  $ 177,���,���  $ �00,�1�,7�� $ 177,���,��1

 1�,��7,��0  (1�,���,1��)  �,���,�1� -  -

 �0�,�1�,�11  1��,���,���  1��,��7,1�1 �00,�1�,7�� 177,���,��1

 

 (101,017,��7)  (11�,7��,0�0) (�0,11�,���) (10�,7��,���) (��,0��,1��)

 11,���,7�1  11,���,7�0 1�,���,�01 1�,��0,�1� 1�,�00,�0�

 -  -  -  -    -

 $ 11�,1��,�1�  $   ��,���,��� $ 107,�0�,�1� $ 10�,��0,��1 $ 10�,�10,��0

 

 ��,�70,000 ��,���,��� ��,�1�,1�7 ��,1�0,000 �0,11�,1�7

 ��,7��,�7� ��,1��,��� �1,��1,�01 ��,��1,�0� ��,���,��1

 $   ��,7��,�7�  $   ��,���,1��  $   ��,�10,��� $   ��,��1,�0� $   ��,7��,7��

  

 $    17,���,���  $  (11,���,���) $   11,���,��0 $     �,01�,��� $      �,���,7��

 1.1� .�� 1.1� 1.0� 1.07

Per Bond Resolution 4800, the 
Authority shall establish and col-
lect rates, which together with 
other available funds, will be suf-
ficient to make all payments per-
taining to bond payments, main-
tenance and operations costs, 
and any other charges against 
the Authority. Certain amounts 
in the 2005 disclosures have been 
reclassified to conform with the 
2006 presentation.

 �001 �000  1��� 1��� 1��7 
 

 $    �1,�11,���  $   ��,���,��7  $   70,�0�,�17 $   �7,��0,��� $    �7,���,�0�

  -   -  -  -  -

  

 ��,0�1,��0  �1,���,1��  �0,���,0�� ��,�70,�07 ��,7��,��1 

 �7,�00,000   �7,�00,000  �7,�00,000   �7,�00,000  �7,�00,000 

 ��,1�1,���  ��,1�1,���  ��,1�1,���  ��,1�1,���  ��,1�1,��� 

 ��,0�0,��7  ��,0�0,��7  ��,0�0,��7  ��,0�0,��7  ��,0�0,��7

  -  -  -  -  -

 $ ���,�1�,11�  $ ��7,���,�1�  $ ���,7��,7�0  $ ���,77�,��� $ ���,��1,17� 

See Note to Financial 
Statements, Deposits 
and Investments for 
additional information 
about restrictions.
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Historical Energy Resources (MWh)
     Hydro Steam Purchased
 Year     Generation Generation Power Total

1��7      77�,1��  �,717,���  ���,770 �,���,��0

1���      1,0��,���  �,��0,���  �1�,�01 �,���,01�

1���      �7�,�1�  �,17�,0�1  (�0,��0) �,0��,���

�000      ���,���  �,���,�1�   ���,��� �,�10,���

�001      7�1,��� �,�0�,�1�  1��,�70 �,07�,���

�00�      ��7,�00 �,17�,��� ���,��1 �,10�,07�

�00�      7��,��� �,7��,1�� �0�,07� �,�7�,�17

�00�      1,���,01� �,0��,1�� ��7,��� �,���,��0

�00�      ���,��1 �,��1,��� ���,7�� 7,1��,07�

2006      340,601 5,029,856 1,163,942 6,534,399

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority

Historical Sales by Customer Group (MWh)
         Off-System Total  Off-System Total
 Year     Municipal Cooperative Industrial Other Firm Contract Sales Spot Sales

1��7    1,7��,��0 1,���,1�� �0�,��� 1�1,��� 7��,�7� �,���,��� 1��,0�� �,�1�,���

1���    1,���,��� 1,�71,��� ���,��� 1��,��7 ��0,��0 �,���,��� 7�1,7�� �,00�,��1

1���    1,�70,��0 1,��0,�7� �0�,1�� 1�0,7�1 7��,��� �,��0,��� 7�1,1�� �,�01,�11

�000    �,�1�,�7� ���,��1 �7�,��7 1�1,��0 1,�7�,��� �,���,�1� �0�,�1� �,���,���

�001    �,���,��� ��7,��� �00,��� 1��,�0� 1,���,��� �,��7,�10 ��7,�0� �,�1�,�1�

�00�    �,���,��� �10,�1� ��0,��� 1��,��� 1,��0,��� �,1��,00� �1�,17� �,�7�,1�1

�00�    �,7�7,��� ���,��� ��1,1�� 171,7�� 1,���,��� �,���,��� �7�,�1� �,00�,�7�

�00�    �,��0,��� ���,7�� ���,��� 170,�7� 1,���,��� �,��0,��1 ���,��7 �,1��,01�

�00�    �,1�0,1�� ���,07� ���,��� 1��,001 1,���,��0 �,���,�7� ���,��1 �,701,��0

2006    2,990,548 583,181 650,148 141,144 1,642,752 6,007,773 90,254 6,098,027

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority

Thermal Equivalent Availability Percentages
 Year      GRDA 1 GRDA � NERC

1��7       N/A N/A N/A

1���       7�.7 %  ��.� % ��.0 %

1���       ��.� ��.7 �1.�

�000       �7.� 7�.� ��.�

�001       �7.0 ��.� ��.�

�00�       ��.� ��.� ��.7

�00�       �1.� ��.� ��.�

�00�       7�.� ��.� ��.�

�00�       �7.� 7�.� ��.�

2006       87.4 70.7   n/a

Source:  Grand River Dam Authority
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State of Oklahoma Demographics
  
       Unemployment Per Capita Total**
 Year      Population Rate Income Personal Income
1��7 �,�1�,�00 �.1 %  $ �1,10� *
1��� �,���,�00 �.� %  $ ��,1�� *
1��� �,���,000 �.� %  $ ��,��� *
�000 �,��0,��� �.0  %  $ ��,�07 $ ��,�10,���
�001 �,��0,100 �.� %  $ ��,01� $ �0,1�0,���
�00� �,���,700 �.� %  $ ��,��1 $ �0,177,�0�
�00� �,�11,�00 �.0 %  $ ��,�17 $ ��,���,��1
�00� �,���,�00 �.� %  $ ��,�70 $100,0��,�70
�00� �,���,��� �.� %  $ ��,�0� $10�,11�,��1
2006 3,579,212 4.0 %  $ 32, 210 *

Source:  www.okcommerce.gov -  Oklahoma Department of Commerce.  *Data unavailable. ** In Thousands

Major Employers in Communities Served by GRDA
  
Company     Location  Type
State of Oklahoma  Statewide Government
Wal-Mart    Statewide Retail/Distribution Center
Oklahoma State University  Stillwater Education
Lowe’s Home Centers  Statewide Retail
Mazzio’s Corporation  Statewide Food
Dollar General Stores  Statewide Retail
McDonald’s Restaurants of Oklahoma  Statewide Food
Arby’s Roast Beef  Statewide Food
Cherokee Nation of Oklahoma  Tahlequah Services
Sears & Kmart  Statewide Retail

Source:  Compiled from www.okcommerce.gov -  Oklahoma Department of Commerce

Population Change: 1990 - 2006
  
      Ranking Growth % Growth % Growth % Population Population Population
     �000-�00� 1��0 to �000 �000 to �00� 1��0 to �00� �00� �000 1��0
Rogers County 1 ��.0 % 1�.7 % ��.� % ��,�00 70,��� ��,170
Wagoner County � �0.1 % 1�.� % ��.� %   ��,�00 �7,��1 �7,���
Logan County � 1�.� % �.0 % �7.� % �7,000 ��,��� ��,011
Payne County � 10.� % �.� % �0.0 % 7�,�00 ��,1�0 �1,�07
Delaware County 10 ��.1 % �.0 % ��.� % �0,100 �7,077 ��,070
Adair County 1� 1�.� % �.1 % �1.1 % ��,�00 �1,0�� 1�,��1
Sequoyah County 1� 1�.� % �.1 % ��.� % �1,�00 ��,�7� ��,���
Cherokee County 1� ��.� % �.� % �1.� % ��,�00 ��,��1 ��,0��
Mayes County �� 1�.0 % �.7 % 1�.� % ��,�00 ��,��� ��,���
Haskell County �� 7.� % �.1 % 11.� % 1�,�00 11,7�� 10,��0
Creek County �� 10.� % �.� % 1�.� % ��,100 �7,��� �0,�1�
Tulsa County �� 11.� % �.� % 1�.� % �77,�00 ���,�01 �0�,��1
Osage County �� �.7 % �.� % �.� % ��,�00 ��,��� �1,���
Pittsburg County �0 �.� % �.� % 10.� % ��,000 ��,��� �0,��1
McIntosh County �1 1�.0 % �.� % 1�.� % 1�,�00 1�,��� 1�,77�
Muskogee County �� �.0 % �.� % �.� % 71,000 ��,��1 ��,07�
Nowata County �� �.� % �.0 % �.1 %  10,�00 10,��� �,���
Lincoln County �� �.� % 1.� % 11.� % ��,�00 ��,0�0 ��,�1�
Pawnee County �� �.7 % 1.� % 7.� % 1�,�00 1�,�1� 1�,�7�
Craig County ��  �.0 % 0.� % �.� % 1�,000 1�,��0 1�,10�
Washington County �1 1.� % 0.� % �.� % ��,�00 ��,��� ��,0��
Okmulgee County �� �.� % 0.0 % �.� % ��,700 ��,��� ��,��0
Ottawa County �7 �.� % -0.� % �.0 % ��,000 ��,1�� �0,��1
 Latimer County �1 �.� % -1.� % �.� % 10,�00 10,��� 10,���

total for Grda 24 County district  12.3 % 4.3 % 17.1 % 1,496,200 1,434,754 1,277,921

Total for all of Oklahoma’s 77 Counties  �.7 % �.7 % 1�.� % �,�7�,�1� �,��0,��� �,1��,���

Sources:  Public Law 94-171 - U.S. Bureau of the Census, Oklahoma State Data Center, www.okcommerce.gov  - Oklahoma Department of Commerce
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Miscellaneous Statistics
         Date of
       Rated Generating Commercial
 Generating Facilities  Location Capability Fuel Operations

Pensacola Project, 
Grand Lake O’ the Cherokees: 
Pensacola Dam Units 1, �, �, �, � and �  Langley, Okla. 1�0 MW Hydro 1��1

Markham Ferry Project, 
Lake Hudson:
Robert S. Kerr Dam Units 1, �, � and �  Locust Grove, Okla. 11� MW Hydro 1���

Salina Pumped Storage Project, 
W. R. Holway Reservoir:
Salina Units 1, � and �  Salina, Okla. 1�0 MW Hydro 1���
Salina Units �, � and �  Salina, Okla. 1�0 MW Hydro 1�71

Coal-Fired Complex:
GRDA Unit 1    Chouteau, Okla. ��0 MW Thermal 1���
GRDA Unit � (GRDA’s ��%)  Chouteau, Okla. ��� MW Thermal 1���

 Other Facilities    Location

Administration Headquarters  Vinita, OK

Energy Control Center  Locust Grove, OK

Lake Patrol Headquarters  Langley, OK

Cushing Field Office  Cushing, OK    

Transmission Distribution 
and Engineering Headquarters  Pryor, OK

Satellite Office   Oklahoma City, OK

 Transmission Interconnections

American Electric Power (AEP)
Associated Electric Cooperative Company (AECI)
Empire District Electric Company (Empire)
KAMO Power (KAMO)
OG&E Electric Services (OG&E)
Southwestern Power Administration (SWPA)
Western Farmers Electric Cooperative (WFEC)

 Regional Transmission Organization

Southwest Power Pool (SPP)

 Number of Full Time Employees

1��7      ���

1���      ���

1���      ��7

�000      ���

�001      ���

�00�      ��0

�00�      ��7

�00�      ��1

�00�      ���

�00�      ���

This publication, printed by the Galt Foundation is issued by the Grand River Dam Authority, at no cost to taxpayers, as authorized by �� O.S. 1��1. Sec. ��1 et seq.   
1,000 copies have been printed at a cost of $10,�77.00. Copies have been deposited with the Publications Clearinghouse of the Oklahoma Department of Libraries.
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